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          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Good morning,

          3  ladies and gentlemen. Thank you for attending this

          4  oversight hearing of the Committee on General

          5  Welfare. I am Councilman Stephen DiBrienza. I am

          6  joined by a member of the Committee, Council Member

          7  Mike Abel, and although not a member of the

          8  Committee, someone who is actively involved in all

          9  of our issues, all of the issues the Committee

         10  covers and all of our areas of jurisdiction, Council

         11  Member Christine Quinn.

         12                 Before we are done we expect to be

         13  joined by the remaining members of the Committee,

         14  Council Members Eldridge, Malave-Dilan, Linares,

         15  Watkins, Henry, Perkins and Rodriguez.

         16                 This morning's oversight hearing

         17  covers an array of topics broadly defined as recent

         18  changes at HRA, in particular the Division of AIDS

         19  Services, and how they affect people living with HIV

         20  and AIDS.

         21                 Now, that is a slightly broader topic

         22  than the Committee generally sets up, but this

         23  hearing is important because this Administration is

         24  making, or attempting to make major changes in its

         25  provision of services of people living with HIV and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  AIDS.

          3                 Notwithstanding the fact that Local

          4  Law 49, then sponsored by Council Member Duane,

          5  myself, and many, many other members of this City

          6  Council, established vital guidelines for the City

          7  to follow in providing for people living with HIV

          8  and AIDS.

          9                 Over the years this Administration

         10  has repeatedly attempted to violate Local Law 49.

         11  That record is absolutely clear, despite all of

         12  their talk about law and order, they repeatedly try

         13  to violate the law. They have tried forcing HIV

         14  positive welfare applicants to undergo the

         15  additional burden of EVR, and we will hear about

         16  their stunning and complete loss at the Court of

         17  Appeals, the highest court of our state. They have

         18  tried to not provide medically appropriate housing

         19  for people living with HIV/AIDS, a requirement of

         20  Local Law 49. They have repeatedly tried to force

         21  individuals and families to wait days for emergency

         22  housing. The Court has ruled against this

         23  Administration on each and every one of those items.

         24                 In addition, over the last several

         25  months, which is why we brought it all together at
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          2  today's hearing, they have attempted to take other

          3  actions that will affect the provision of services.

          4                 Social workers, for example, some 29

          5  of them are located in SRO hotels on site, providing

          6  social service assistance, not only to the clients

          7  in those hotels, but quite frankly they become a

          8  link for the surrounding community, when often those

          9  communities are worried about the impact of the

         10  particular SRO.

         11                 Well, they are pulling from SROs and

         12  moving them to field offices. They attempted to

         13  switch HOPWA funds, designated from the federal

         14  government for specific housing purposes, they

         15  wanted them for administrative purposes.

         16                 Council Member Quinn and I and other

         17  members of this Council, many other members of this

         18  Council, Council Member Robles and Reed and Lopez

         19  and others come to mind, and then eventually a

         20  majority of the Council signed onto a letter

         21  opposing the switch, HUD eventually ruled that the

         22  City could not engage in that switch. But they

         23  persist, they want to do it again. There will be a

         24  subject of a hearing tonight where they, once again,

         25  when they set out their plans for the future will
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          2  allude to the desire to engage in a funding switch,

          3  which hopefully the agency will continue to oppose.

          4                 Today's hearing will focus primarily

          5  on three areas of the many I mentioned. We would

          6  like to present a litigation update on the EVR

          7  ruling, referred to as the Hernandez case. We know

          8  the New York State Court of Appeals ruled the City

          9  could not force DAS clients to undergo the

         10  additional burden of EVR.

         11                 We want to talk a little bit about

         12  what has been referred to as HASA, the idea that HRA

         13  is moving to somehow perhaps, and it is not clear,

         14  so we are going to raise more questions in this area

         15  than we probably answer, somehow create an

         16  additional, I guess either agency or entity or

         17  program trying to deal with welfare recipients who

         18  are HIV positive, or dealing with AIDS, and not

         19  already DAS clients. There are a number of questions

         20  surrounding this area.

         21                 And finally, and perhaps the single

         22  largest piece or biggest issue of today's hearing,

         23  the scattered site housing changes. The City is

         24  planning to make drastic changes to the way in which

         25  scattered site housing is provided. The City wants
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          2  to establish unreasonable rent caps, leave tenants

          3  unprotected against abusive landlords which could

          4  result in thousands of additional New Yorkers

          5  becoming homeless and hitting our shelter system

          6  more, if you combine it with other attempted

          7  policies of this Administration of being forced out

          8  onto the street.

          9                 So that is the background for the

         10  hearing. We have been joined by Council Member

         11  Rodriguez. As I said, various members of the

         12  Committee we expect to be here before we are done.

         13  We are going to keep the time line tight. We have

         14  scheduled witnesses, it is not clear that we can

         15  accommodate additional witnesses, based on the time,

         16  but of course we will always take submission of

         17  testimony. So, let us move quickly to begin.

         18                 With our set of witnesses, and as we

         19  begin that, let me also turn to Council Member Quinn

         20  for an opening comment, and then just so you know,

         21  the first witness will be Armen Merjian, the staff

         22  attorney who brought the litigation on the EVR case.

         23                 So, let me ask you to join us at the

         24  witness table and turn it to Council Member Quinn

         25  for a moment.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair.

          4                 I just want to say that this hearing

          5  is, what is it that they say - deja vu all over

          6  again. You know, I just want to remind all of us and

          7  the Administration that we remember that this all

          8  began in 1993 when the Mayor first moved as Chief

          9  Executive of the City to try to eliminate the

         10  Division of AIDS Services and that was fairly black

         11  and white he was going to totally get rid of it.

         12                 When he failed at that, you have just

         13  seen a constant barrage of attacks and erosion at

         14  the agency.

         15                 So, some of what we talk about today

         16  may seem, you know, somewhat technical or internal

         17  rules at the agency about who pays for rents and

         18  whose name the leases are in, but these are in fact

         19  changes that in my opinion have the same goal in

         20  mind that the elimination of the agency did, which

         21  is to slowly, as opposed to quickly, slowing but

         22  surely eliminate the services and the safety net and

         23  the help for people with AIDS in this City and to

         24  move this City out of their obligation of serving

         25  people with AIDS, and I hope today's hearing sheds

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  further light on all of the internal changes that

          3  are going on that are really making it

          4  extraordinarily difficult for DAS to survive, and

          5  more importantly, for DAS clients to survive.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

          8  Council member.

          9                 As everyone knows, the Committee on

         10  General Welfare swears in all of its witnesses so as

         11  not to cast any diversion on any particular witness

         12  but every single witness who appears before us is

         13  sworn. So, I direct your attention to Counsel of the

         14  Committee who will swear you in and then you can

         15  begin.

         16                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

         17  hand.

         18                 Do you swear or affirm that the

         19  testimony you are about to give is the truth?

         20                 MR. MERJIAN: I do.

         21                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your name

         22  and affiliation for the record.

         23                 MR. MERJIAN: My name is Armen

         24  Merjian, I am a senior staff attorney at Housing

         25  Works.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you. You

          3  can begin your testimony.

          4                 MR. MERJIAN: Well, I was asked to

          5  come here today to talk to the Council, and

          6  obviously the public as well, about the case of

          7  Hernandez, the EVR case, as it is commonly referred

          8  to, which we just received a decision on on October

          9  19th.

         10                 On October 19th, as briefly

         11  mentioned, the highest court of New York, the Court

         12  of Appeals, came down with the unanimous ruling,

         13  which was quite significant, a seven nothing ruling,

         14  fully upholding the law as enacted by the City

         15  Council reinstating the Supreme Court decision which

         16  eliminated this onerous and duplicative hurdle for

         17  some of the most at-risk and severely

         18  immuno-compromised New Yorkers, clients of the

         19  Division of AIDS Services.

         20                 I would be remiss if I didn't begin

         21  my comments by commending the City Council on this

         22  wonderful victory because it is a victory shared

         23  both by the City Council, and of course most

         24  importantly by clients of the Division of AIDS

         25  Services.
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          2                 The resounding seven nothing decision

          3  says that the City Council was right on point, was

          4  working within their powers and is to be commended,

          5  frankly, for removing an unnecessarily hurdle and

          6  facilitating the provisions of desperately needed

          7  benefits and services.

          8                 I would also be remiss, though, if

          9  rather than simply commending the City Council and

         10  extolling the virtues of the decision I didn't

         11  briefly comment on what we had to go through to get

         12  that decision and what significance of the decision

         13  is, but what this case also tells us for future

         14  proceedings, including those that will be discussed

         15  after I speak.

         16                 In 1985, the Division of AIDS

         17  Services was established in recognition of the fact

         18  that people with AIDS have special needs, and we

         19  need to do something different in the way that we

         20  deliver benefits and services to them, less they be

         21  cut off or have their benefits delayed, benefits

         22  that are critical from rent enhancement to food

         23  stamps to Medicaid.

         24                 In 1995, this Administration imposed

         25  the EVR requirement, something that other
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          2  municipalities don't under the guise of fraud

          3  detection, notwithstanding the fact that there is no

          4  respect in an independent body that has ever

          5  documented widespread fraud and a great need for

          6  this. But its cruelest aspect was its imposition on

          7  persons living with AIDS.

          8                 In its wisdom the City Council held

          9  hearings and decided that indeed the Division of

         10  AIDS Services fully ferrets out fraud and

         11  establishes eligibility, such that this onerous

         12  extra step of EVR merely has the virtue of possibly

         13  cutting people off of their benefits, delaying

         14  benefits after eligibility has already been

         15  established, and imposes a group of people into

         16  their home, and in Brooklyn at the time, who are not

         17  trained or sensitive to the needs of people with

         18  AIDS.

         19                 Well, the law was pretty clear we

         20  certainly thought, the City Council thought so, and

         21  after it was signed into law in 1997, we expected

         22  the City to do away with this extra EVR step. After

         23  all, no question of fraud, they already established

         24  eligibility.

         25                 Much to our consternation and great
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          2  sadness, and outrage, they continued to impose it

          3  upon people with AIDS. We had no choice but to file

          4  suit.

          5                 After we filed suit they didn't say,

          6  maya culpa, hey, we were there for the hearings, we

          7  understood that witnesses went on and related how

          8  painful this is and difficult and unnecessary for

          9  people living with AIDS so we are not going to

         10  insist upon it anymore.

         11                 Rather they eliminated the

         12  requirement that all people with AIDS travel to Jay

         13  Street in Brooklyn, from any borough in New York,

         14  although all of them have been diagnosed with

         15  symptoms, not nearly with HIV, and this is an

         16  incredibly onerous requirement.

         17                 This was done not out of the kindness

         18  of their heart again, but in response to the

         19  lawsuits and to make hey in their papers of the fact

         20  that this onerous and clear hurdle was gone, they

         21  reminded courts that they had done this and depicted

         22  it as something they had done of their own volition,

         23  which was completely disingenuous but not unusual.

         24                 They continued to insist people allow

         25  EVR inspectors into their home to duplicate the
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          2  process of eligibility determinations that had

          3  already taken place by DASIS once before. Again,

          4  DASIS would determine eligibility, say we know that

          5  this person has AIDS, we know this person is poor

          6  and meets the requirements, we are ready to cut the

          7  rent check to take the person out of homelessness,

          8  or the food stamps to feed this person and this

          9  person's family, but we are going to wait until EVR

         10  goes in and does the same thing.

         11                 Well, you know, this is an amazing

         12  imposition on the lives of people with AIDS. You

         13  have already heard many times in this chamber what

         14  it did to folks, delaying their critical subsistence

         15  benefits sometimes for months.

         16                 Well, we won a clear and unequivocal

         17  decision in the Supreme Court saying that by all

         18  means the City Council had eliminated the EVR

         19  requirement, but anomalously on appeal at the

         20  Appellate Division we lost a 5/0 unanimous decision.

         21  We lost, however, because that decision was premised

         22  on an erroneous finding of fact, namely that EVR is

         23  necessary because DASIS doesn't ferret out fraud,

         24  they don't determine eligibility. They may --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I am sorry,
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          2  let's repeat that, because this is a very good

          3  summary.

          4                 MR. MERJIAN: Absolutely.

          5                 The City Council never would have

          6  eliminated the EVR requirement for this population,

          7  one might posit, if they didn't know that IS and

          8  DASIS, Income Support, are folks whose only job it

          9  is to determine fully eligibility, and that they

         10  require documentation, and they do interviewing to

         11  establish this.

         12                 They also go into the home, DASIS,

         13  within 48 hours, which shows household composition

         14  and residents. That is why it was done away with.

         15                 Well, the Appellate Division

         16  apparently didn't read the record carefully enough

         17  and assumed that this wasn't the case, that in fact

         18  doesn't establish eligibility, but simply assists

         19  people with AIDS in filling out forms, and trying to

         20  get to the benefit. Well, this is patently

         21  incorrect, and we were quite fortunate that the

         22  Court of Appeals in its discretion that took the

         23  appeal, again, but for the fact that they took a

         24  discretionary appeal because when you lose 5/0 you

         25  have no automatic rights. We would be here right now
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          2  saying that individuals despite the City Council's

          3  clear intent are still being put through this

          4  onerous hoop.

          5                 They took the appeal and we argued it

          6  in September, and again, on October 19th, they came

          7  down with a decision contrary to the 5/0 loss in the

          8  Appellate Division, fully upholding the Supreme

          9  Court's Decision and, again, the 7/0 nature of the

         10  ruling shows that there was never any doubt. They

         11  City had argued, for example, that the words of the

         12  acronym, for example, EVR, does not appear in Local

         13  Law 49, the DASIS law. So, by definition it couldn't

         14  have been eliminated, notwithstanding the fact that

         15  the City was right here for all of the hearings and

         16  understood that it was one of the main points of

         17  Local Law 49, among other things, to do away with

         18  it.

         19                 In addition, it shouldn't go without

         20  saying that they are the agency charged with the

         21  well-being of people living with AIDS, and it is

         22  outrageous that that kind of agency wouldn't take

         23  the opportunity, even if they thought the law

         24  ambiguous to read it in favor of people living with

         25  AIDS, particularly when they knew that their IS
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          2  Division already ferrets out fraud. Instead they

          3  fought tooth and nail for two years in a law that

          4  isn't even ambiguous, saying that the law doesn't do

          5  what it expressly does. Thank goodness we won a 7/0

          6  decision, but the fact that we were put through two

          7  years of ornate circum locutions in three different

          8  courts is testimony to the cruel limits that the

          9  Administration will sometimes go to under the guise

         10  of fraud protection as a subterfuge for really

         11  making the provision of benefits and services so

         12  difficult and so onerous that even people living

         13  with AIDS, often with no support systems, with no

         14  other means to live, even they are being targeted

         15  for these difficult extra hurdles, and we have seen

         16  that finally just recently in the front page of the

         17  New York Times on the Reynolds case, which this

         18  Committee may well know of, in which in the same

         19  manner with food stamps they were putting extra

         20  hurdles in the path of thousands, tens, if not

         21  hundreds of thousands of New Yorkers, requiring them

         22  to come in and go back and come in, in a way that

         23  even the federal government came forward and said

         24  was cruel and unnecessary.

         25                 So, I would ask that we not only
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          2  celebrate this wonderful and clear decision, but

          3  that we also remain vigilant of the kinds of

          4  subterfuges under the name of fraud protection that

          5  the Administration will erect, making it almost

          6  impossible. And as you have mentioned, they seem at

          7  first blush to be highly technical and not to be of

          8  any great moment in the lives of people living with

          9  AIDS, but in fact, with the stroke of a pen and the

         10  imposition of an extra little hurdle, people who

         11  suffer from such things as AIDS wasting syndrome to

         12  dementia, severe neuropathy and painful limitations

         13  in mobility, can easily find it so difficult and

         14  frustrating to jump through that extra hurdle that

         15  their food stamps are cut off, that they need to

         16  give their children away for adoption because they

         17  can't feed them anymore, because they can't get

         18  housing. Their rent check should be cut, they have

         19  been determined to be eligible, but we are going to

         20  determine eligibility again.

         21                 I will close by saying that in

         22  response to the victory, the 7/0 decision, the

         23  Administration's only comment was not mayo culpa or

         24  we are sorry, or it appears clear that the highest

         25  court is spoken, and there was no ambiguity, but
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          2  rather this is a highly technical decision that

          3  means almost nothing and we are not going to do

          4  almost anything differently.

          5                 That does tremendous insult and

          6  injustice to what this body did in eliminating this

          7  hurdle. No, it's an important decision, it is a

          8  decision that cuts down on unnecessary hurdles, and

          9  makes it far more likely that people will get the

         10  benefits and services to which they are entitled.

         11  And we advocates and clients alike hope and pray

         12  that they will take the decision to heart, it is

         13  after all at least ostensively their Charter to

         14  assist our folks in gaining access to and

         15  eligibility for benefits and services, but they will

         16  take to heart and that they will do what they can to

         17  minimize these hurdles for the most

         18  immuno-compromise and often times the most needy New

         19  Yorkers that exist.

         20                 I commend the Committee again and I

         21  thank you for the opportunity to speak.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Well, on

         23  behalf of the Committee and the members of the

         24  Council who supported the law, and that was, while

         25  not unanimous was the vast majority of the Council,
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          2  I want to commend you for having the tenacity and

          3  the willingness and the ability to stick to this

          4  lawsuit. It was a very, very important case, a major

          5  decision, you should be in the best sense of the

          6  word proud of your accomplishments, which only in a

          7  sort of once removed way can we share because we

          8  passed the law and we believed in it then and we

          9  believe in it now and you have played that critical

         10  role in getting the courts to try to order this

         11  administration to comply with the law, something

         12  they routinely do not do.

         13                 Now, I have just two questions,

         14  unless there are any members who do, and there may

         15  be:

         16                 One, is there any doubt in your mind

         17  that the Division of AIDS Services, you know, with

         18  all of its staff and all of the tools at its

         19  disposal, can in fact make valid eligibility

         20  determinations for people who present themselves, in

         21  other words? Or are they just totally incompetent

         22  and do they let all kinds of folks come in somehow

         23  mistakingly or are they sort of aiding and abetting

         24  in fraud? Is there any question in your mind that

         25  they ultimately make eligibility determinations and
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          2  that the review is complete and comprehensive?

          3                 MR. MERJIAN: There is no doubt in my

          4  mind, and the greatest proof of that is that in a

          5  case in which they depicted the Division of AIDS

          6  Services as somehow less competent than EVR to come

          7  in and do that, they proffered absolutely no

          8  evidence of fraud, by people living with AIDS, not a

          9  shred of evidence, not a sentence, not a single

         10  statistic, showing some widespread fraud that DASIS

         11  itself was unable to detect, that EVR was necessary

         12  to detect, and in fact, IS was rolled into DASIS in

         13  recent years, Income Support, in order to do

         14  precisely that and provide for one-stop shopping.

         15                 I will not denigrate the role that IS

         16  does, I assume that their eligibility specialists

         17  are precisely that, and they are trained in doing

         18  so. I would only say finally that among the things

         19  they said that EVR does that DASIS may not be able

         20  to do that are above and beyond were follow-up

         21  questioning and fully scrutinizing documentation.

         22                 Well, I hope that the eligibility

         23  specialists at DASIS scrutinize the documentation,

         24  no one is attempting to get in that is not able to

         25  get in and qualified, and they already have been
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          2  questioning folks for years. So the answer is there

          3  is absolutely no doubt in my mind that they fulfill

          4  that function and have for ten years before the EVR

          5  was even promulgated.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And the second

          7  and final question, is there equally any doubt in

          8  your mind that you as an attorney and advocate, we

          9  as the Council, must sort of maintain our oversight

         10  function because this Administration through this

         11  agency may still yet make attempts to circumvent the

         12  clear 7/0 decision of the Court of Appeals. Is it

         13  something we and you should be worried about?

         14                 MS. MERJIAN: I hope and pray that

         15  this Committee will keep its eye carefully on this

         16  issue because we have seen time and time again they

         17  have attempted to get around decisions, that they

         18  have even been forced to be brought to court for

         19  contempt proceedings and other things. I don't

         20  suspect they will do that, I have faith that the

         21  very division charged with the care of people living

         22  with AIDS to assist them will take this as a

         23  wonderful opportunity, frankly, to do so and will

         24  not attempt to circumvent the decision.

         25                 But on that and so many issues,
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          2  oversight is absolutely essential, if only because

          3  in a federal case that we have in order to --

          4  claiming that DASIS in so many macro ways has been

          5  dysfunctional, they claim that there is no need for

          6  oversight by the Court, there is no need for a

          7  settlement agreement or any other agreement because

          8  this Committee has full oversight over them and they

          9  are fully reporting under the DASIS law that which

         10  the law requires, although I think we know that they

         11  are observing the DASIS law in the breach that the

         12  vast majority of critical reporting requirements are

         13  not being complied with.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Well, I can

         15  only say thank you, on behalf of all of those

         16  clients, and quite frankly, any fairminded New

         17  Yorker who realizes that once they are determined

         18  eligible and having only found those who are

         19  eligible, you know, to provide services to only

         20  those who are eligible, the fact that we have taken

         21  away this unfair burden, the fact that the courts

         22  have agreed 7/0, the fact that we will continue to

         23  monitor to make sure this agency does what it is

         24  supposed to do, is something that we thank you for

         25  and I think, again, I think all fairminded New
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          2  Yorkers would agree and be thankful for that

          3  decision.

          4                 The agency is here, you know they

          5  will be the last witness to appear today, and

          6  hopefully they obviously know that we are going to

          7  ask them about it. I don't know how proud they are

          8  of what they have been doing up until now, given how

          9  onerous and awful it has been, and given the

         10  knowledge they have had of our intent, but hopefully

         11  they seize the opportunity to begin to do what is

         12  right and fair.

         13                 Any questions for members? If not,

         14  thank you so much for your testimony.

         15                 Again, it is not often that such a

         16  clear and decisive victory on behalf of simple

         17  justice and fairness occurs, and you should be very

         18  proud.

         19                 MR. MERJIAN: I appreciate it, and I

         20  think it is a credit to the wisdom and humanity of

         21  this panel.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         23                 MR. MERJIAN: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: We are joined

         25  by Council Member Malave-Dilan, and as I indicated,
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          2  other members of the Committee will be here. I am

          3  told Council Member Linares is visiting Puerto Rico

          4  as a follow-up to the first visit involving the

          5  controversy surrounding Vieques, so he will not be

          6  with us today. I know he is also committed to the

          7  oversight work of our committee.

          8                 Okay, so that is one of the major

          9  issues that everyone should know about, and it is an

         10  important and critical issue.

         11                 The second, part of this notion that

         12  this Administration has been, always has been and

         13  remains unfortunately on a path of trying to limit

         14  and/or destroy this agency. Let's talk to Hayley

         15  Gorenberg, the Coordinating Attorney for HIV

         16  Advocacy Legal Services in New York about some of

         17  the questions raised around this concept of HASA.

         18                 Again, this particular issue has not

         19  really been documented in any particular way. I

         20  think it is more of a series of questions that need

         21  to be raised.

         22                 Again, please turn your attention to

         23  the Council of the Committee.

         24                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

         25  hand.
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          2                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

          3  the testimony you are about to give is the truth?

          4                 MS. GORENBERG: I do.

          5                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your name

          6  and affiliation for the record.

          7                 MS. GORENBERG: My name is Hayley

          8  Gorenberg, and I am the Coordinating Attorney for

          9  HIV advocacy at the Legal Support Unit at Legal

         10  Services for New York City.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Welcome. And

         12  you can begin.

         13                 MS. GORENGERG: Thank you.

         14                 By way of introducing my

         15  organization, let me say that Legal Services is a

         16  nonprofit network of neighborhood offices, providing

         17  direct client representation in civil legal matters

         18  for poor people throughout New York City.

         19                 Several of our neighborhood offices

         20  have comprehensive legal services units for people

         21  living with HIV, allowing one-stop legal shopping

         22  for HIV positive clients navigating the welfare

         23  system.

         24                 I came to the Legal Support Unit

         25  after having worked in neighborhood offices in the
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          2  Bronx and in Queens.

          3                 At the Legal Support Unit I provide

          4  technical assistance to advocates representing

          5  people living with HIV, design continuing legal

          6  education, training programs and chair a monthly

          7  Citywide task force on HIV-related legal issues.

          8                 Several weeks ago I received a call

          9  from the Division of AIDS Services and Income

         10  Support, Deputy Commissioner Gregory Caldwell,

         11  sketching the outline of a plan for an expanded

         12  HIV-related agency, to include not only DASIS

         13  clients, but also all public assistance recipients

         14  who had disclosed that they were living with HIV.

         15                 While the City has provided nothing

         16  on paper, I have since heard reports that this

         17  system will be rolled out as a Work Experience

         18  Program or WEP for people with HIV, and that at

         19  least in the beginning it would not include current

         20  DASIS clients.

         21                 Our knowledge of the City's

         22  application of WEP or workfare to public assistance

         23  recipients causes us to oppose the new proposal.

         24                 By way of history, let me explain

         25  that in the past the City has acknowledged that
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          2  people living with HIV should receive an exemption

          3  from Workfare. And when some of our seropositive

          4  clients got legal help clearing workfare sanctions

          5  that had closed their cases, advocates could contact

          6  a point person in HRA to get the sanctions lifted

          7  and the cases coded for workfare exemptions in the

          8  future.

          9                 We called it "the unwritten rule" and

         10  while the system was strange, it served a purpose:

         11  it protected people living with HIV from the stress,

         12  physical and mental wear-and-tear, and downright

         13  punitive nature of the WEP system.

         14                 Experience in the public assistance

         15  system in general has revealed WEP as a case-closing

         16  sanction machine. It is that reality, which is very

         17  different from trying to lift people out of poverty

         18  through useful work experience, that drives my

         19  comments.

         20                 It is that reality that allows me to

         21  defend the rights of people with HIV to hold

         22  productive jobs free of discrimination, yet speak

         23  against the imposition of the current workfare

         24  program on people living with HIV.

         25                 I will focus my testimony in three
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          2  areas: How workfare would undermine federal

          3  disability benefits; how the program would threaten

          4  confidentiality rights; and the inhumanity of

          5  cancelling Medicaid, a WEP-related sanction.

          6                 The City requires every DASIS client

          7  to apply for disability benefits from Social

          8  Security. But plenty of people whose symptoms do not

          9  qualify them for DASIS have legitimate applications

         10  pending too. Typically, they suffer either a

         11  combination of many different impairments which may

         12  not be recognized by the AIDS Institute's listing of

         13  qualifying diagnoses used by DASIS, or they may

         14  include certain mental health issues, often an

         15  overlay of depression or anxiety disturbances that,

         16  in combination with their physical symptoms, qualify

         17  them for SSI, Supplemental Security Income, or SSD,

         18  Social Security Disability Insurance Benefits.

         19                 While the Social Security system

         20  grinds slowly along, non-DASIS disability claimants

         21  in the public assistance system are generally sent

         22  to HS Systems, the organization under contract to

         23  perform medical assessments for WEP.

         24                 It does not have a track record of

         25  sophisticated analysis of our clients, who cope with
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          2  a complex of overlapping HIV-related symptoms and

          3  often grueling treatment regimes.

          4                 Furthermore, while the federal Social

          5  Security Program recognizes that one's own doctor

          6  can usually give the most accurate assessment of

          7  one's medical limitations, deferring to the treating

          8  physician, the WEP system, as a rule, disregards

          9  treating physicians' opinions.

         10                 And what result do we expect when an

         11  inadequate medical assessment mandates that our

         12  clients with pending federal disability applications

         13  show up at WEP sites? We expect that any clients who

         14  do not immediately fail at the assignments, cutting

         15  off their subsistence benefits, will proceed to

         16  undermine their legitimate federal cases, perhaps

         17  irretrievably.

         18                 Every Social Security administrative

         19  law judge I have ever appeared before asks the

         20  claimant to describe a typical day's worth of

         21  activities, the root concept being that anyone who

         22  can perform routine work-like activity should not

         23  receive disability benefits.

         24                 As an experienced advocate, I think I

         25  would have trouble choosing the words to explain the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  combined effect of a botched medical assessment and

          3  a workfare assignment in a way that would not

          4  compromise the case of a justified claim for

          5  disability payments; I cannot imagine a

          6  self-represented Social Security claimant - and

          7  many, many claimants appear without advocates -

          8  managing to navigate the labyrinth of dysfunctional

          9  systems necessary to receive federal benefits.

         10                 Let me emphasize that the federal

         11  dollars I am discussing are disability benefits for

         12  which these claimants are fully qualified. In the

         13  case of the SSD program, they are actually insurance

         14  payments that working people have paid for out of

         15  their own wages.

         16                 Most people collect their Social

         17  Security benefits in retirement, but if they become

         18  disabled before then, they can receive benefits

         19  based upon their payments while working. Someone

         20  entitled to SSD has worked ten years to quality, to

         21  buy that disability insurance, and the workfare

         22  program could easily jeopardize that.

         23                 Furthermore, when workfare

         24  assignments interfere with Social Security cases,

         25  applicants' only option is welfare drawn largely
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          2  from local and state funds, rather than receiving

          3  federal money that would actually relieve a burden

          4  on New York taxpayers.

          5                 In sum, the threatened loss of

          6  federal payments, not only to deserving individuals,

          7  but to our city as a whole, clarifies one reason to

          8  oppose the imposition of workfare.

          9                 Next I would like to turn to the

         10  question of confidentiality. How would the

         11  confidentiality of HIV positive people be protected

         12  at WEP sites? How would they ensure private,

         13  protected storage of medication, including

         14  refrigeration, if necessary?

         15                 How would private breaks for taking

         16  medications while protecting confidentiality be

         17  managed? These basic questions demand answers.

         18                 Simply identifying HIV positive

         19  welfare recipients poses a major confidentiality

         20  risk. The plan as proposed to me was that the City

         21  would cross-reference Medicaid records against WEP

         22  exclusions, and that any people whose Medicaid files

         23  showed that they were taking HIV medications yet

         24  were exempted from WEP would be swept into the new

         25  HIV service system, the rationale being that they
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          2  must have self-disclosed their HIV status to get a

          3  WEP exemption.

          4                 Now, let me point out that someone

          5  with HIV may not be doing WEP assignments for

          6  reasons that have nothing to do with the HIV itself.

          7  She may have a heart condition, he may be legally

          8  blind. Using medical databases to mine information

          9  for purposes nothing like the purposes for which

         10  people initially consented to disclose these

         11  personal medical facts appears to be in vogue; the

         12  Administration's proposal to use Medicaid files to

         13  ferret out people's histories of treatment for

         14  substance abuse ha already drawn a federal probe,

         15  and this new proposal should trigger similar

         16  challenges.

         17                 Let me turn finally to Medicaid.

         18  Taking away medical care from poor people living

         19  with HIV is perhaps the most draconian sanction

         20  imaginable. By now it is well known that people in

         21  treatment for HIV commonly take complicated courses

         22  of medications that require adherence to vigorous

         23  schedules. Missing doses may trigger drug-resistant

         24  HIV, rendering medications useless and putting

         25  everyone at risk.
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          2                 How would this medical catastrophe

          3  play out for people with HIV in workfare? Part of

          4  the workfare assessment is a series of

          5  questionnaires designed to detect drug and alcohol

          6  problems. Certain answers to the questions lead to

          7  mandated treatment for substance abuse.

          8                 Now, I am very supportive of

          9  committed, high-quality substance abuse treatment

         10  generally, and especially as a tool to fight the

         11  spread of HIV. But the current system in the context

         12  of WEP is punitive rather than therapeutic. Anyone

         13  mandated to treatment who fails to comply suffers

         14  not only a case closure, but cancellation of

         15  Medicaid.

         16                 The sanction endangers anyone, but it

         17  has deadly potential in the context of HIV. Proposed

         18  guidelines for determining "compliance" with drug

         19  treatment programs have been dubbed "one strike,

         20  you're out," because they tolerate not one incident

         21  of relapse after 30 days of treatment. And some

         22  reports put the sanction rate in cases of mandated

         23  drug treatment at over 50 percent. Impose such a

         24  program on people with HIV, and you create a system

         25  of suffering likely to lead to early deaths, and you
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          2  manufacture a huge public health risk.

          3                 For all of these reasons, we must

          4  prevent implementation of workfare for people living

          5  with HIV.

          6                 I thank you for the opportunity to

          7  present testimony on this important issue.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you. I

          9  just have one or two questions because I think this

         10  really is, as you said earlier, sort of out there

         11  without any clear written communication. This

         12  agency, like much of this administration acts in

         13  secret or attempts to act in secret, does not share

         14  with this Council in general, this Committee in

         15  particular, does not share with the advocates of the

         16  provider communities, you know, their client base,

         17  that is their fall mark, and it is terrible, and

         18  hopefully people have begun to realize how bad it is

         19  in the City, whether the particular issue affects

         20  them or not, it is not healthy for a democratic,

         21  small d, society.

         22                 In any event, let me just ask a

         23  couple of things. Is there any question in your mind

         24  that while the comments say this first could apply

         25  to HIV positive individuals not currently DAS
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          2  clients, DASIS clients, is that in fact if they were

          3  to go down this road that this Administration could

          4  well look to make it universal, including DASIS

          5  clients?

          6                 MS. GORENBERG: This Administration

          7  has stated that its goal is what is called full

          8  engagement, and this Administration has shown a

          9  pattern of keeping incremental implementation of

         10  workfare and these punitive programs on vulnerable

         11  populations to the point where most recently we have

         12  an announcement that as a workfare sanction for

         13  homeless people, in effect their children may be

         14  taken and put into foster care.

         15                 With those kinds of steps in place, I

         16  cannot help being direly concerned that we would see

         17  just such implementation. As you point out, with

         18  nothing on paper, we don't see what the plan is at

         19  this point beyond the conversation I had.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Let me just be

         21  clear about that, sort of both the middle and the

         22  end of your testimony. If the person in fact is HIV

         23  positive, or dealing with symptoms of AIDS and is

         24  attempting to obtain disability, federal,

         25  governmental payment, as opposed to the state or
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          2  local payment, because the feds pay 100 percent of

          3  that; is that correct? Or whether it is federal or

          4  private insurance, it is 100 percent --

          5                 MS. GORENBERG: A large federal

          6  component beyond anything that we have in the local

          7  program when people qualify for those federal

          8  benefits, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And the idea

         10  is that as they are making application or as they

         11  are attempting to sort of finish that process, the

         12  notion of the assignment, and showing up with the

         13  assignment, because otherwise they will lose

         14  whatever benefits they have, is the very action that

         15  ends up denying them that --

         16                 MS. GORENBERG: They are caught in a

         17  terrible bind because the federal system moves very

         18  slowly. So, while they may qualify now, based on the

         19  federal standard, for their federal disability

         20  payments, they have to do something to live before

         21  they get qualified. And if part of what they have to

         22  do to live is to show up at a workfare assignment

         23  and try to do something, struggle to do something so

         24  as not to have the case closed, then that record of

         25  having struggled to do something will end up in
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          2  their testimony in the disability case undermining

          3  the case.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Because they

          5  are quote/unquote working or pushing a broom or

          6  whatever?

          7                 MS. GORENBERG: Exactly. They have

          8  that pattern of activity and they are caught in a

          9  bind just to exist.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And of course

         11  at the end of the day that person is denied examples

         12  of assistance that is predominantly paid for

         13  federally, it means state and city sort of end up --

         14                 MS. GORENBERG: Footing the bill.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So not only is

         16  it maybe cruel and unusual, it is also from a

         17  narrow, not necessarily my point of view, but from a

         18  narrow point of view, counterproductive from a

         19  dollars and centers, sort of City centric dollars

         20  and cents point of view.

         21                 I appreciate your testimony. I don't

         22  know if there are some questions. We have a question

         23  from Council Member Quinn, we have also been joined

         24  by Council Members Perkins and Eldridge, as

         25  indicated, members of the Committee who are active
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          2  in the work, all aspects of our work.

          3                 Council Member Quinn.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Hayley, in your

          5  conversations with DAS, did they outline a time

          6  frame for when this proposal would be put on paper,

          7  made public, an opportunity where advocates or

          8  clients might get to comment on it? Anything like

          9  that, that would give us a sense of what stage they

         10  are at when this might happen?

         11                 MS. GORENBERG: All that was presented

         12  to me was that it would be sometime after the new

         13  year.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: After the new

         15  year.

         16                 And in your conversation, either in

         17  that conversation or if there were follow-up ones,

         18  did you get to pose any of these questions to the

         19  Administration? The questions that you raised and

         20  the problems that you raised in the testimony?

         21                 MS. GORENBERG: I had invited in that

         22  conversation officials, including Deputy

         23  Commissioner Caldwell, to a meeting of my HIV

         24  advocacy task force to be able to pose questions

         25  once this had been outlined, and he subsequently
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          2  declined to come to the meeting.

          3                 I would be interested, obviously, in

          4  posing these questions and many others to get

          5  answers. I have raised here only the most serious

          6  points that I can see evolving from what was laid to

          7  me initially.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, I am

          9  sorry that that invitation wasn't taken up because

         10  we might have more information today, but you can

         11  rest assured that later on in the hearing we will

         12  ask the questions that you posed here and other ones

         13  to try to get more information, you know, on this.

         14  So thank you for this testimony and these questions

         15  that we will try to get the answers to.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 MS. GORENBERG: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Now, the third, and, again, just to

         21  comment, the second very important aspect of this

         22  overall oversight hearing on how much this

         23  administration appears to be committed to destroying

         24  the Division of AIDS Services and Income Support,

         25  how much they seem committed to denying benefits to
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          2  the neediest New Yorkers, how far they will go to

          3  act in secret to disrupt the lives of those dealing

          4  with HIV and/or full-blown AIDS, and in so many

          5  different ways, raising so many questions.

          6                 Now, the third and final topic, they

          7  are proposing talking about again, as with most of

          8  this Administration, somewhat secretive changes to

          9  the Scatter Site Housing rules and regulations and

         10  programs.  We have put together a panel of folks who

         11  can talk to us about this, and then we will hear

         12  from the Administration.

         13                 Jennifer Flynn, the Director of the

         14  New York City Housing Network; Amy Herman, the

         15  Executive Director of New York AIDS Coalition;

         16  Regina Quattrochi, Executive Director of Bailey

         17  House; and Ravina Hayes-Cozier, the Executive

         18  Director of the Harlem Directors Group.

         19                 You can determine the order that is

         20  most efficient in terms of the presentation. I

         21  remind you that each of you have to be addressed by

         22  counsel first, and then in a moment you can begin.

         23                 MR. NEWMAN: Can you please all raise

         24  your right hands.

         25                 Do you swear or affirm that the
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          2  testimony you are about to give is the truth?

          3                 MS. FLYNN: Yes.

          4                 MS. HAYES-COZIER: Yes.

          5                 MS. HERMAN: Yes.

          6                 MS. QUATTROCHI: Yes.

          7                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your name

          8  and affiliation for the record.

          9                 MS. QUATTROCHI: Regina R. Quattrochi,

         10  Executive Director of Bailey House.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: We will take

         12  everyone's name and affiliation first and then we

         13  will go back to testify.

         14                 MS. HERMAN: Amy Herman, Executive

         15  Director of New York AIDS Coalition.

         16                 MS. FLYNN: Jennifer Flynn, Director

         17  of the New York City AIDS Housing Network.

         18                 MS. HAYES-COZIER: Ravinia

         19  Hayes-Cozier, Director of Harlem Directors Group.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Welcome to all

         21  of you, some for the first time before the

         22  Committee, and others who have been here before. You

         23  can begin your testimony, and, again, you can pick

         24  the order.

         25                 MS. QUATTROCHI: Okay, thanks.
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          2                 Included with my testimony is a list

          3  of Scatter Site providers in all five boroughs, for

          4  your information.

          5                 I am Regina Quattrochi, the Executive

          6  Director of Bailey House. I have been in that

          7  position since 1991 and I previously was on the

          8  Board of what used to be called the AIDS resource

          9  center.

         10                 So, I was on the board of the agency

         11  when Scatter Site was first developed.

         12                 My agency which was called the AIDS

         13  Resource Center at the time, started the first

         14  HIV/AIDS Scatter Site Program in New York City.

         15                 We selected this model because it had

         16  been used successfully in other fields such as

         17  mental health and developmental disabilities, to

         18  provide supportive mainstream housing for people

         19  with special needs.

         20                 The model was funded

         21  by HRA in 1985. Since 1987, we provided technical

         22  assistance on this model to hundreds of agencies

         23  here and around the nation. We currently operate an

         24  80-unit program with apartments in Manhattan and

         25  Brooklyn.
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          2                 DASIS' recent announcement that it

          3  intends to discontinue the traditional Scatter Site

          4  model, couldn't come at a worse time.

          5                 The City lacks sufficient HIV/AIDS

          6  housing units to house even a fraction of those in

          7  need. As the states in its quarterly report to the

          8  City Council, and in its 2000 proposed consolidated

          9  plan to HUD, DASIS refers only nine percent of DASIS

         10  clients to permanent supportive housing, and that is

         11  a statistic that the City has put in both of those

         12  documents.

         13                 The remaining 91 percent are sent to

         14  SROs or the dwindling supply of YMCA and other

         15  not-for-profits transitional programs purely because

         16  there is a lack and I quote the City of dedicated

         17  units.

         18                 It is not as if they don't

         19  necessarily want to send people to permanent

         20  housing, but the units do not exist.

         21                 That statistic, coupled with the

         22  escalating housing prices for the poor in this City,

         23  makes DASIS' current action, and it is not a

         24  proposed action, by the way, it has begun already

         25  with new providers from the recent RFP, their action
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          2  is unconscionable.

          3                 Since 1984, the HIV/AIDS Scatter Site

          4  apartment model has successfully housed thousands of

          5  homeless men, women and children living with HIV and

          6  AIDS in New York City.

          7                 Key features of the model include an

          8  apartment leased by the provider agency to ensure

          9  maximum housing stability and the provision of a

         10  comprehensive array of support services to assist

         11  Scatter Site clients to maintain independent living

         12  and survive with HIV and AIDS.

         13                 The flexibility of the model has

         14  allowed providers to modify services in accordance

         15  with changes in the epidemic. Because providers

         16  lease the apartment, they are also able to maintain

         17  a consistent stable pool of apartments that are

         18  readily available to new referrals when a client

         19  dies or leaves the program.

         20                 Programs are spared the disruption

         21  that may result from the loss of an apartment each

         22  time a client leaves the program.

         23                 Now vacant Scatter Site apartments

         24  can be turned around or readied within a week or so

         25  to accept the new client when the former client
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          2  leaves the program.

          3                 Under the proposed model, this

          4  process could be lengthened to two to four to six

          5  months or however long it takes to find a new

          6  apartment for a new client, because that other

          7  apartment will go with the client, after some

          8  transition period. So, it is a real change in the

          9  fundamental nature of this program.

         10                 The HIV Scatter Site model is

         11  extremely cost effective at anywhere from $60 to $85

         12  a day, again, depending on the level of services,

         13  that includes rent, it includes utilities, it

         14  includes phone bills, it includes all cost to house

         15  the client in the apartment, and provide a

         16  comprehensive array of social services. That

         17  compared with $650 to $1,000 a day in some of the

         18  residential long-term care facilities in the City,

         19  where by the way people are piled up waiting for

         20  discharge into permanent units.

         21                 It is also the supportive housing

         22  model that offers clients the most confidentiality

         23  and independence since they live in regular

         24  apartments like the rest of us, while enjoying an

         25  invisible safety net of housing stability.
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          2                 Provider agencies pay the rent and

          3  handle matters with the landlord. It is the model

          4  preferred by most PWAs who request supportive

          5  housing.

          6                 Now, remember, supportive housing is

          7  a different model than independent housing. People

          8  who come to DASIS now can request independent

          9  housing, have DASIS help them pay their rent in an

         10  apartment that they rent, where they live, where

         11  they don't have to deal with anybody's program. That

         12  is an option available today.

         13                 The only flaw in the current Scatter

         14  Site model has resulted from the City's inability to

         15  keep pace with changes in the epidemic and the New

         16  York City housing market.

         17                 Agencies like mine are reimbursed

         18  $480 to $520 a month per client to rent "medically

         19  appropriate apartments, which DASIS, and as it well

         20  should, require to be on the ground or second floor

         21  or in an elevator equipped building.

         22                 In a City with less than a one

         23  percent vacancy rate, and I know I am preaching to

         24  the choir here, and an inflated real estate market,

         25  apartment finding for $480 or $520 has become
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          2  extremely difficult if not impossible.

          3                 My agency alone subsidizes the rent,

          4  just the rental portion of our Scatter Site Program,

          5  with about $180,000 in private money.

          6                 The other problem with the model is

          7  that DASIS, the contracting agency, has no accurate

          8  system to really assess who is appropriate for a

          9  model life Scatter Site, which although supportive,

         10  provides maximum independence even though it is a

         11  supportive program.

         12                 DASIS often has to refer clients who

         13  need intensive, not just, you know, periodic, but

         14  intensive mental health and substance abuse

         15  services, since there are few other programs out

         16  there that will accept them. And scatter site

         17  providers readily, most of us readily accept these

         18  clients, because we know that given the array of

         19  services and the housing safety net, that 80 percent

         20  will succeed in the model.

         21                 In order for the proposed model to

         22  succeed, for this new model to succeed, DASIS will

         23  have to change its assessment and referral process

         24  and only refer clients who from the very first day

         25  are capable or able to work through all of the many
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          2  issues they may be dealing with when they first get

          3  housed to pay the rent to make sure that they

          4  maintain their housing.

          5                 Although Scatter Site clients are

          6  required to pay 30 percent of their income as renter

          7  providers in many agencies, 60 to 80 percent of the

          8  clients are in some level of arrears, again for

          9  various reasons.

         10                 Fortunately, since the agency pays

         11  rent directly to the landlord, these arrears do not

         12  result in immediate eviction or even eventual

         13  eviction of the client in many cases.

         14                 The Scatter Site model is designed,

         15  it is a supportive model, so it is designed that

         16  social service staff can intervene with the client

         17  and work on issues around budgeting or get them the

         18  kinds of services they needed to maintain their

         19  health and stability.

         20                 At least 80 percent of the clients,

         21  the clients with active substance use, clients with

         22  mental illness, succeed in the model and end up

         23  maintaining their housing stability because of this

         24  invisible safety net.

         25                 In 1997, Scatter Site providers were
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          2  presented with a new challenge. Formerly treated as

          3  rent stabilized tenants, we lost this protected

          4  status as the Court of Appeals decided in the

          5  Manchurian case that not-for-profits, voluntary

          6  hospitals, corporations, were not protected by New

          7  York State Rent Stabilization laws for the

          8  apartments they rented for employees or clients.

          9                 Many landlords immediately began to

         10  take advantage of this decision and at Bailey House

         11  we began to see it first in Chelsea, which of course

         12  was being gentrified at that point, landlords were

         13  saying we don't have to renew your leases, you are

         14  not rent stabilized, you want to renew that lease,

         15  which is already you are paying maybe $700 or $800,

         16  we want $1,200 because there will be a line outside

         17  the door the minute we advertise this apartment.

         18                 We immediately informed DASIS of the

         19  situation, and attached is a memo that I sent in

         20  1997 to Deputy Commissioner Caldwell on the DASIS

         21  staff informing them of the Manchurian decision,

         22  sending them a copy of the Law Journal article which

         23  I have attached to your records, and invited them to

         24  meet with providers to talk about how this decision

         25  would affect the future of Scatter Site. They were
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          2  silent.

          3                 Six months ago, Deputy Commissioner

          4  Caldwell met with me and Jennifer Flynn, the

          5  Director of the AIDS Housing Network, to discuss the

          6  Manchurian case and explore options.

          7                 We met a couple of times and explored

          8  various options, including having the lease in the

          9  clients' name with the provider agency acting as a

         10  guarantor. They had to be rejected for various legal

         11  reasons. We didn't hear any further.

         12                 Then two months ago his staff

         13  informed us that DASIS had developed a new model to

         14  address the issues we had presented.

         15                 To our dismay, the model included

         16  eliminating the safety net by having agencies merely

         17  assist clients to find and lease apartments in their

         18  own name. And requiring the client and DASIS to pay

         19  the rent directly to the landlord. DASIS staff at

         20  that meeting also informed us they would not ever

         21  approve a rent in excess of $650 a month under this

         22  new model.

         23                 Agencies would be responsible for

         24  providing social services to the client to assist

         25  them to maintain housing stability and in fact would

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            52

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  be penalized or rewarded in their reimbursement,

          3  depending on how successful the client is.

          4                 The new model envisions clients

          5  transitioning into full independent living within a

          6  relatively short time. Given DASIS' poor track

          7  record with paying rents on time, and this is

          8  evident in the housing placement assistance programs

          9  that have been run in the City since 1992, and the

         10  60 to 80 percent arrears rate in the current model

         11  we expect that many evictions will result from these

         12  proposed changes.

         13                 The new model does not include

         14  changes in the DASIS referral system as far as we

         15  have been told, to preselect only individuals who

         16  will clearly succeed in this type of model. And

         17  clearly there are people in Scatter Site, maybe five

         18  to ten percent, who would prefer this kind of model

         19  and who will succeed in the model. And we have said

         20  to DASIS, let's try a small pilot program, staff and

         21  clients can choose, can self-choose, can self-select

         22  for this pilot, but, no, we are talking about

         23  widespread change.

         24                 I believe the model will result in

         25  the loss of at least half of the 1,800 units of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  current Scatter Site housing that we now have.

          3                 These are precious commodities in the

          4  current rental market, and even though agencies

          5  labor with less than adequate reimbursement, we are

          6  still willing to do whatever we have to do to

          7  maintain this model.

          8                 While five to ten percent of the

          9  current Bailey House clients again may succeed in

         10  this model, 90 to 95 percent will not, because the

         11  clients thought they could succeed in independent

         12  living and they would have chosen it in the first

         13  place when they went to DASIS, or they would have

         14  after a year or two in Scatter Site asked their case

         15  managers to transition back into that model.

         16                 I urge you to intervene. We can't

         17  afford to lose any of the permanent HIV/AIDS

         18  supportive housing units we now have. We can't

         19  afford to do away full scale with the model that has

         20  helped thousands of homeless PWAs live with dignity

         21  and safety. We can't afford to experiment with the

         22  lives of homeless PWAs, some of the City's poorest

         23  and most vulnerable citizens.

         24                 Thanks.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.
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          2  Unless there is time pressure, it would be better to

          3  hear from everyone, I think, and then there may be

          4  some questions.

          5                 I just wanted to make sure, in your

          6  testimony you said 1,800, that is the entire

          7  universe?

          8                 MS. QUATTROCHI: More or less. About

          9  1,800 Scatter Site Units, it may be about 1,900. It

         10  is not clear how many there are.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         12                 MS. QUATTROCHI: DASIS would have that

         13  number.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: May I ask a

         15  question about the number? Does that just include

         16  single --

         17                 MS. QUATTROCHI: Families and singles.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: The

         19  congregate.

         20                 MS. QUATTROCHI: No, Scatter Site.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But I mean

         22  in Scatter Sites there are more than one person

         23  living in some of the apartments.

         24                 MS. QUATTROCHI: In Scatter Sites

         25  there are singles, families and couples. But that
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          2  1,800 unit encompasses everything.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:

          4  Eighteen-hundred.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Approximately

          6  1,800 units.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Okay.

          8                 MS. QUATTROCHI: Of Scatter Sites.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, we will

         11  come back to it.

         12                 MS. HERMAN: And I think my testimony

         13  will fill in some of the details, and we are going

         14  to all complement each other, but I think that what

         15  is clear is we are seeing a chipping away of the

         16  safety net, which you alluded to earlier.

         17                 My name is Amy Herman, as I said

         18  before, I am Executive Director of the New York AIDS

         19  Coalition, which is an alliance of HIV/AIDS

         20  organizations located throughout New York City.

         21                 We thank you for the opportunity to

         22  convey our concerns regarding the HRA proposal.

         23                 We are concerned because housing is a

         24  vital part of the HIV care continuum and without

         25  appropriate housing solutions, people with HIV and
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          2  AIDS will get sicker at a greater cost to the

          3  public.

          4                 As a result of this proposed change,

          5  leases will be transferred from community-based

          6  agencies names to clients' names. All 1,800 units

          7  will be required to adhere to the new model as

          8  leases expire.

          9                 DASIS has also stated that the 14

         10  agencies which will administer 360 new units

         11  targeted to the operational by January 1st, 2000,

         12  must apply as well.

         13                 Of additional concern, all rents for

         14  single apartments would be capped at 650 per month.

         15  Case management services will be provided only for a

         16  discrete period of time, six to eight months, with

         17  the goal of moving clients to independence.

         18                 Before discussing why we consider

         19  these proposed changes to be highly problematic, I

         20  would like to briefly explain the existing DASIS

         21  program, which may address some of the questions

         22  that you were asking before.

         23                 The City estimates that it costs

         24  approximately $17 million to run the 1,800 units.

         25  One-half of the amount comes from Washington and the
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          2  other half is split equally between the City and

          3  State resources.

          4                 Nearly 3,000 individuals live in the

          5  units. These numbers include people living with HIV

          6  and AIDS and their families.

          7                 The 28 currently contracted

          8  community-based organizations offer a strong housing

          9  solution with a range of services that greatly

         10  benefit its clients.

         11                 By providing convenient access to

         12  health care facilities, local pharmacies, drug

         13  treatment, child care, support groups, clients of

         14  Scatter Site programs are able to remain in their

         15  communities and not be uprooted from their support.

         16                 A typical 20-unit Scatter Site

         17  program offers clients a range of interventions,

         18  including case management, mental health services,

         19  and substance abuse counseling.

         20                 Staff positions include a project

         21  director, an operations manager, case manager,

         22  mental health coordinator, a part-time substance

         23  abuse coordinator, a maintenance worker and an

         24  administrative assistant.

         25                 Larger programs, those with
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          2  additional units, are able to augment staff and

          3  offer additional services, such as pastoral and

          4  bereavement counseling, health services coordination

          5  and recreational group activities. Larger programs

          6  are able to hire additional staff.

          7                 A typical 40-unit program may add two

          8  case managers, depending on the client to case

          9  manager ratio. In addition to the 20-unit staffing

         10  pattern, a 40-unit program may also have either an

         11  activities coordinator, health services coordinator

         12  or pastoral bereavement counselor.

         13                 For almost two decades, AIDS housing

         14  advocates have been able to develop congregate care

         15  supportive living environments, independent living,

         16  supported SROs, rental assistant and traditional

         17  housing.

         18                 Since its inception, the Scatter Site

         19  program has been a sponsored base model, the

         20  sponsoring agency is the holder of the lease.

         21                 The existing program offers clients

         22  weekly case management contact either on-site at the

         23  sponsoring agency or at home.

         24                 The DASIS proposal that drastically

         25  changed the existing model; first let's just look at
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          2  two issues. Client-based leases and $650 cap issue,

          3  which would be addressed hand-in-hand.

          4                 As mentioned, DASIS would require

          5  that all existing units must change, be changed to

          6  the names of the client as leases expire.

          7                 Simultaneously, these providers must

          8  also renegotiate leases for single apartments. We

          9  believe agencies will be hard pressed to find

         10  landlords willing to first change the lease to the

         11  clients' name and then also substantially lower

         12  their rent to meet the City's $650 ceiling.

         13                 In fact, an informal study connected

         14  by the New York City AIDS Housing Network, which I

         15  am sure Jennifer will refer to, shows that a number

         16  of providers find it necessary to rent apartments

         17  above $650.

         18                 Given that there is a one percent

         19  vacancy rate in the City, one can easily speculate

         20  that landlords will not be inclined to change leases

         21  over from an agency to a client and to lower their

         22  rents to $650.

         23                 What does this mean for Scatter Site

         24  clients? It could mean homelessness in this

         25  competitive market where clients will have
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          2  difficulty successfully competing for markets. It

          3  could mean that people will get sicker, even if they

          4  pass credit checks they may be uprooted from their

          5  existing homes and placed in substandard housing and

          6  are in unfamiliar communities far from needed

          7  services.

          8                 The City contends that Scatter Site

          9  clients would not become homeless under the new

         10  model. That is just to say that apartments can be

         11  found for $650. A Manhattan-based housing placement

         12  assistant program, which employs a 650 cap on

         13  apartments, has told my staff that most of their

         14  apartments are in boroughs other than Manhattan and

         15  not always in the best of neighborhoods.

         16                 This provider also mentioned that are

         17  finding it increasingly difficult to locate $650

         18  apartments, as the climate has truly become a

         19  landlords' market.

         20                 DASIS staff has said that by

         21  employing a client-based model, agencies will no

         22  longer be responsible for the rent and any arrears.

         23  Rent will become the responsibility of the client?

         24  What would happen to arrears? Do they become the

         25  responsibility to the client as well? Landlords are
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          2  going to want their money and will return to the

          3  clients for payment, in which goes to the issue that

          4  Gina was raising earlier, what is this going to mean

          5  in terms of potential evictions.

          6                 Initially we heard that from DASIS

          7  staff that $650 was the absolute maximum for a

          8  single, thus doing away with the City exception to

          9  policy which enables clients to use additional funds

         10  to help pay for apartments that exceed the budgeted

         11  amount.

         12                 Recently DASIS has said that on a

         13  case-to-case basis the City would review and make

         14  decisions about paying additional amounts. However,

         15  we are not clear what these initial amounts would

         16  be. It is interesting to point out that even HUD

         17  recommends that New York City fair market rent value

         18  for a single apartment should be 780.

         19                 To date there is no clarity on how

         20  much the City will allow for families requiring

         21  other than studio and one-bedroom apartments.

         22                 Another issue revolves around the 360

         23  new units expected to come on line in January.

         24                 Earlier this year, agencies were

         25  notified that their proposal had been favorably
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          2  reviewed and that they were targeted to administer

          3  the new units.

          4                 A number of these 14 agencies said

          5  they submitted proposals based on the current

          6  Scatter Site model. When the 14 were notified in the

          7  late summer about the proposed model and a number of

          8  them claimed that they were surprised by the change.

          9                 The new model requested agencies

         10  provide case management for a discrete period of

         11  time of six to eight months.

         12                 That goal for each provider would be

         13  to move the client to self-sufficiency.

         14                 On October 12th my staff conducting a

         15  briefing for Harlem agencies, which I imagine

         16  Ravinia will respond to, regarding the proposed

         17  Scatter Site training which was coordinated by

         18  Harlem Directors Group.

         19                 During that well attended session,

         20  provider after provider mentioned that they could

         21  not comprehend how clients would be made

         22  self-sufficient in eight months.

         23                 These providers argued that after a

         24  decade DASIS still does not understand the range of

         25  issues confronting most Scatter Site residents.
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          2                 They mention that apparently DASIS

          3  has forgotten their clients will get sick or maybe

          4  even experience relapse around their drug use.

          5                 Agreeing with DASIS that

          6  concentration and activities for daily living skills

          7  building in preparation for independent living is

          8  needed, providers believe that the solution is to

          9  enhance the existing model so that these and more

         10  services can be provided.

         11                 The same sentiments were echoed at an

         12  uptown forum which was sponsored by Councilman

         13  Perkins.

         14                 At that event, which was attended by

         15  a number of Scatter Site clients, providers and

         16  consumers all echo the sentiment that moving clients

         17  to self-sufficiency in six to eight months was

         18  unrealistic.

         19                 To sweeten the pot, DASIS has

         20  indicated the incentive allocations up to five

         21  percent of an agency's budget to be given to those

         22  who make a designated amount of appropriate

         23  placements into independent living.

         24                 Conversely DASIS also mentions that

         25  an equivalent amount of funds could be denied to
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          2  those vendors who failed to maintain adequate

          3  performance standards.

          4                 Some housing advocates fear that this

          5  might result in an assembly line of clients moving

          6  through the Scatter Site Program.

          7                 They believe that monetary incentives

          8  could be harmful to clients who may not be prepared

          9  for independence.

         10                 Alternatively, agencies that are

         11  doing a good job addressing clients' needs may be

         12  punished for rightly acknowledging that clients are

         13  not ready for independence.

         14                 And what happens to clients who have

         15  problems once on their own? DASIS has said that each

         16  case should be reassessed six to eight months after

         17  independence.

         18                 What happens if a client has to be

         19  re-entered into a program? Financially strapped

         20  agencies will be hardpressed to provide aftercare

         21  and to reintroduce clients into Scatter Site

         22  programs without resources, even if they want to do

         23  so.

         24                 NYAC believes that before any model

         25  is introduced, that there needs to be some
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          2  assessment of the impact of the proposal.

          3                 We suggest the City establish a pilot

          4  program. A good place to start with this pilot could

          5  be with the 360 new units. This pilot, if done

          6  correctly, could offer a concrete data and

          7  information about client impact.

          8                 To change all existing apartments to

          9  a client-sponsored model now makes little

         10  programmatic sense and could be severely harmful.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. Now, it

         12  is always unfair, but as we go down the line, if you

         13  can, because some of the points have been made, if

         14  you can self-edit a little bit of the testimony,

         15  that is generally helpful. We don't want to throw

         16  you off and we want to hear what everyone has to

         17  say.

         18                 MS. FLYNN: I have cut out a lot.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         20                 MS. FLYNN: Good morning. My name is

         21  Jennifer Flynn, and I am the Director of the New

         22  York City AIDS Housing Network.

         23                 The Network is a coalition of

         24  non-profit housing providers, AIDS service

         25  organizations and most importantly, homeless and
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          2  formerly homeless people living with HIV and AIDS.

          3                 I would like to thank you for this

          4  opportunity to testify on behalf of the Network

          5  members, some 70 of which stood outside with me in

          6  the pouring rain on Tuesday chanting "healthy

          7  housing is a right, we will fight for Scatter Site",

          8  so I am happy to be here to be able to convey to you

          9  that message.

         10                 And also, I personally would like to

         11  thank all of you for your role in fighting to

         12  preserve benefits and services for New Yorkers

         13  living with HIV and AIDS.

         14                 Six months ago, as Gina told you, we

         15  were presented with the new Scatter Site model as a

         16  solution to the rent stabilization problem, the

         17  Manchurian case that she told you about.

         18                 This new model that they offered us

         19  would move the name of the lease from the non-profit

         20  organization into the clients, and just to squash

         21  any theories that we advocates are adversaries to

         22  change, that we can't progress, on the surface we

         23  initially thought maybe this is a good thing.

         24  Perhaps fostering independence and providing the

         25  tenant more rights to the apartment under the law
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          2  would be positive.

          3                 The model would also, quite frankly,

          4  be much easier for non-profit organizations to

          5  administer, allowing them to avoid the heavy cost of

          6  arrears that many were suffering due to client

          7  non-payment of rent.

          8                 According to a survey taken by Bailey

          9  House Technical Assistance Program and the New York

         10  City AIDS Housing Network, Scatter Site providers

         11  were reporting arrears of between $35,000 and

         12  $75,000 per year. This was a tremendous burden for

         13  them. And we were trying to get DASIS to address the

         14  issue by giving them a real rent reimbursement.

         15                 It used to be that organizations --

         16  under the model that I guess is half current,

         17  traditional, organizations would get reimbursed in a

         18  base amount of $480 for a single person living in an

         19  apartment that they leased, and the client was

         20  expected to contribute approximately 30 percent more

         21  of their income to help cover the discrepancy

         22  between the real cost of the apartment, which was

         23  already significantly higher than $480, and the

         24  amount that the non-profit got back from DASIS.

         25                 Under the current model, if a client
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          2  was unable to pay his or her portion of the rent,

          3  the non-profit would cover that cost through private

          4  fundraising.

          5                 It is important to note that under

          6  contract with DASIS, non-profit organizations were

          7  not allowed to evict people for non-payment of rent.

          8  Not that it didn't happen, and not that they

          9  couldn't evict people, but they weren't allowed to

         10  do it for non-payment.

         11                 However, after taking a closer look

         12  at the model, five minutes later, we immediately

         13  realized that it would lead to hundreds of

         14  evictions.

         15                 We asked DASIS, what would happen if

         16  a client couldn't pay their portion of the rent?

         17  DASIS responded by saying that non-profits will have

         18  to do effective case management in order to ensure

         19  that clients are aware that they have to pay.

         20                 The answer was insignificant to say

         21  the least. When in the current model it is in the

         22  non-profit's best self interest to collect the rent,

         23  to do the greatest, best social work possible

         24  because it is coming out of their pocket if the

         25  client doesn't pay. They are still reporting arrears
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          2  of $35,000 to $75,000 a year, then how can more

          3  effective case management be done when the

          4  non-profit's name won't be on the lease and they

          5  won't be responsible.

          6                 And even though non-profits cannot

          7  evict people for non-payment of rent, guess who can?

          8  Landlords. And guess what? They will.

          9                 DASIS staff told Gina and I that the

         10  model would force landlords to reduce their rents,

         11  kind of using this as a way to deal with the real

         12  estate crisis that we are having in New York, I

         13  suppose.

         14                 They said that for those already

         15  living in Scatter Site housing, non-profits are

         16  supposed to approach landlords when their lease is

         17  up and ask them to move the lease into the clients'

         18  name.

         19                 Organizations are now expected to

         20  convince the landlord to reduce the rent to

         21  somewhere near the 650 cap. If the rent is higher,

         22  say 800, what, you know, the going rate is for a

         23  one-bedroom apartment in New York, then they are

         24  going to have to somehow bring it down.

         25                 DASIS did correct themselves in
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          2  subsequent meetings saying that they may provide

          3  some exceptions in some cases, although we are a

          4  little bit weary about some cases, cases by case,

          5  when it is not in writing.

          6                 Landlords, regardless of rent, would

          7  largely be unwilling to move the lease into the

          8  client's name, as shown by a small informal phone

          9  poll that the New York City AIDS Housing Network did

         10  of known Scatter Site landlords. Eighty-two percent

         11  said that regardless of rent they would not move the

         12  lease into the client's name, just because when it

         13  is in the non-profit's name they are guaranteed

         14  their rent. When it is in the client's name they are

         15  not. You know, they don't have anything against

         16  their clients, it is just money.

         17                 Scatter Site is by far the most

         18  requested type of housing for New Yorkers living

         19  with HIV and AIDS, the current model. Clients are

         20  able to receive services on an as needed basis for

         21  the duration of time that they are living in

         22  housing. The proposed new model assumes that AIDS

         23  progresses linearly, you know, in a line, where

         24  clients come into housing when they are most sick,

         25  and then their health rapidly improves and they can,
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          2  you know, sort of move out.

          3                 We know that this isn't true.

          4  Providing safe, stable and medically appropriate

          5  housing for someone who has spent their recent past

          6  on the street or in subsidized single-room occupancy

          7  hotels, can contribute immensely into improving our

          8  health. But that does not mean that they are cured.

          9  AIDS is an episodic illness, they can get sick

         10  again.

         11                 People living with HIV and AIDS

         12  continue to face an uncertain future. Under the new

         13  DASIS model, clients will be provided services only

         14  for about the first six to ten months, six to eight,

         15  but I am giving them the benefit of the doubt, after

         16  they are referred by DASIS.

         17                 When Deputy Commissioner Gregory

         18  Caldwell was ask what a contracted non-profit should

         19  do if the client has already rotated off the

         20  organization's client list, suddenly requires

         21  services once again, which Amy spoke about, he

         22  responded by saying that, quote, he knows that no

         23  non-profit would turn away a client in need."

         24                 However, he never said that his

         25  agency would provide the necessary funding to ensure
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          2  that the client could actually receive services, and

          3  so it only leads me to believe that it is the intent

          4  that non-profits share the same case management

          5  principles as those practiced at DASIS, as we heard

          6  a little bit about from Armen, you know, providing

          7  for services, remaining historically understaffed

          8  and making clients navigate extensive barriers to

          9  obtain the most basic and humane services.

         10                 The New York City AIDS Housing

         11  Network opposes this new Scatter Site model

         12  outright. Before we thought of it as something that

         13  could be part of a continuum, but it is clear to us

         14  now that this model, which I guess is true, it is

         15  not proposed anymore, it is in place, is unworkable

         16  in this real estate market, and it is unworkable

         17  with the Division of AIDS Services and Income

         18  Support.

         19                 It is used in other areas, and it is

         20  very successful in other areas. But one of the

         21  things that they don't have to deal with is they

         22  don't have a referral process of DASIS, they are a

         23  non-profit organization. You know, in Boston, for

         24  instance, a non-profit organization administers the

         25  program and they have clients. So they are very
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          2  familiar with Ravinia. I know Ravinia, she comes in

          3  on Mondays, I find an apartment on Monday, I can

          4  take her to see it.

          5                 But through DASIS the non-profit has

          6  to wait for the client, who may not have a phone,

          7  who may not have a known address, who may be

          8  difficult to get in touch with, has to wait for that

          9  client to come to view the apartment with no money

         10  or no guarantee to hold the apartment from the

         11  landlord, it is just completely unworkable.

         12                 You have heard a great deal about the

         13  proposed Scatter Site model and the individual

         14  problems with the model. I would just like to say

         15  one thing about all of these issues that we are

         16  addressing here today, and I know that you know

         17  this, they work together. Let's say that DASIS

         18  clients are in fact forced into workfare, into WEP.

         19  Let's say that the new model, the model that we are

         20  discussing is implemented. Let's say that a client

         21  is living in a Scatter Site apartment and he is

         22  already moved off of the non-profit client list,

         23  meaning that he or she is living independently.

         24  Let's say that the client develops pneumonia and

         25  misses his or her work assignment, three, four,
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          2  five, days in a row. The client is too sick to get

          3  out of bed, to get the proper documentation and

          4  can't jeopardize their health by waiting in a

          5  crowded, cold DASIS office to see their caseworker

          6  and explain about their absence.

          7                 Needless to say, that client's case

          8  is closed. While the client spends the next three

          9  months trying to get their case reopened, they are

         10  unable to pay their rent. The landlord begins

         11  eviction proceedings, the client is once again

         12  homeless and forced to re-enter the system of trying

         13  to find housing.

         14                 These will be the results if these

         15  proposed changes go through.

         16                 The proposed new Scatter Site model

         17  is nothing more than the City's Human Resource

         18  Administration's attempt to move DASIS into its

         19  workfare or WEP ideology.

         20                 We have heard the horror stories

         21  about clients losing their Medicaid from Hayley,

         22  after being sanctioned from missing work. We know

         23  the workfare resulted in 400,000 people being

         24  churned from welfare. We see from the new drug

         25  screening tactics and policies at HRA that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  confidential records will be shared across agencies

          3  with punitive results. We know that deserving

          4  individuals will be removed from welfare.

          5                 One thing we always thought was as

          6  long as someone was living in supportive housing,

          7  they would always have their home, despite all

          8  attempts to remove other benefits and income. This

          9  new model proves that not even the sacred right of

         10  housing is safe, if you are a poor New Yorker living

         11  in the Giuliani Administration.

         12                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         13  testify before you today. And thank you for your

         14  necessary and critical, so critical, oversight of

         15  HRA. And I hope that DASIS takes this opportunity to

         16  improve the existing model of Scatter Site, or the

         17  traditional model that we currently use. As Amy had

         18  pointed out.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         20                 And then finally, Ms. Cozier.

         21                 MS. HAYES-COZIER: I have a name like

         22  yours, it is hard to pronounce also.

         23                 Ravinia Hayes-Cozier, and I am the

         24  Executive Director of the Harlem Directors Group.

         25                 We work with approximately about 20
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          2  community-based organizations who provide services

          3  from Scatter Site housing to case management to

          4  prevention services.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I know that

          6  because Council Member Perkins gave me a little bit

          7  of an education about your group, and my assistant

          8  and the attorney for the Committee came up today to

          9  the meeting held by it, I am sorry I couldn't get

         10  there, but I just wanted you to know that we are now

         11  well familiar with the Harlem Directors Group.

         12                 MS. HAYES-COZIER: Well, thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         14                 MS. HAYES-COZIER: What I am going to

         15  try to do is try to put a face on all of this. I am

         16  going to try to eliminate from all of my speech the

         17  word "client" and talk about people, because that is

         18  what we are talking about.

         19                 Let me give you a context to listen

         20  to, and that is the context of an area like Harlem

         21  and Upper Manhattan. In Upper Manhattan in the

         22  Harlem area, we had men who were dying at faster

         23  rates than men in Bangladesh, and you might say well

         24  what does that have to do with Scatter Site housing

         25  and HIV and AIDS? We also had women who, when
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          2  diagnosed with cancer, die faster than their

          3  counterpart once diagnosed. So, what does that have

          4  to do with HIV and AIDS and Scatter Site housing?

          5                 Well, it is simply to say that people

          6  who live in communities like Harlem, Bed Stuy and

          7  other areas, have a multitude of issues to deal

          8  with, have a multitude of chronic diseases to deal

          9  with, and when coupled with HIV and AIDS it is

         10  almost overwhelming, not almost, it is overwhelming

         11  at times. And what this process in terms of what we

         12  are talking about in terms of Scatter Site housing

         13  does, it provides those individuals with providers

         14  who help them, who work with them, who provide

         15  social services and care for them in walking through

         16  this tremendous system that is sometimes

         17  overwhelming for the healthiest person. So we need

         18  to understand that.

         19                 The second thing I would like to talk

         20  about is, as someone mentioned, well, does this just

         21  include individuals? Well, the Scatter Site housing

         22  that exists up in Harlem and upper Manhattan, 50

         23  percent of those houses are occupied by women and

         24  children, so the impact that we are talking about is

         25  not only on the individual person who has been
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          2  diagnosed with HIV and AIDS, but it also involves

          3  the children that they are care providers for, and

          4  also have to be a part of this discussion as well.

          5                 The third thing I would like to talk

          6  about is, our clients or our people that we deal

          7  with are no different from this overall epidemic.

          8  The rise in people who are diagnosed with HIV and

          9  AIDS in the substance abuse world is tremendous,

         10  over 60 percent of African-Americans and Hispanics

         11  who are diagnosed with this disease are in fact

         12  diagnosed because of substance abuse. That reflects

         13  also the people who are in Scatter Site housing.

         14                 As we look at this, we have to

         15  understand that addiction is a medical condition,

         16  and like any medical condition people can relapse.

         17  Again, with the social services that are provided

         18  through Scatter Site housing, people are helped, and

         19  they are walked through, they are committed to

         20  working on their treatment. But, again, some of the

         21  things that my colleagues have mentioned, that if

         22  they are not there, can put them right back into

         23  relapse.

         24                 The questions I would like to pose to

         25  you that I think would be helpful to us in terms of
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          2  answering in the long run, is while my colleagues

          3  stated that it would be good to have a pilot

          4  program, I guess I am under the conviction of, if it

          5  is not broke, why are we trying to fix it? And if it

          6  does need fixing, what has been done on an

          7  evaluation of the current Scatter Site housing. That

          8  is one question. And if we have not done that kind

          9  of evaluation, then why are we moving toward new

         10  models.

         11                 The third question I would ask you to

         12  ask people is, if we are to do such an evaluation,

         13  it seems to me that we cannot have an evaluation

         14  that does not have the input of the consumer, the

         15  provider and the landlord and that if there is

         16  something wrong with this current system, that we

         17  all sit down at the table and we have an open and

         18  honest discussion on how we all can fix it and fix

         19  it to meet the needs of the people who are currently

         20  being provided the service.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         23  Thank you all very much. I just have one or two

         24  quick questions.

         25                 Is there any doubt in any of your

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            80

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  minds, either individually or collectively, that the

          3  historical Scatter Site model works, while not

          4  perfect, very well for about 2,000 of the most

          5  neediest New Yorkers, dealing with HIV and/or

          6  full-blown AIDS in a cost-effective and

          7  compassionate way?

          8                 MS. QUATTROCHI: It is absolutely

          9  effective, and it provides the most mainstream form

         10  of supportive housing because people are living in

         11  apartments, like everybody else, you know, there is

         12  confidentiality, the neighbors don't necessarily,

         13  hopefully don't know DASIS clients, and so it is

         14  really the only mainstream supportive housing we

         15  have. Once someone lives in a congregate facility,

         16  people know they live in the AIDS house, or even in

         17  these mixed programs, like Times Square Hotel, they

         18  are living in a designated special needs building.

         19  Scatter Site you don't have that. Absolutely

         20  effective.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And for the

         22  numbers crunchers among the Administration which

         23  tend to dominate I think, is there any question

         24  again, if we limited ourselves simply to the cost of

         25  effectiveness of the program, is there any question
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          2  in your mind, is there any argument that you think

          3  could be raised that it is somehow not cost

          4  effective?

          5                 MS. QUATTROCHI: No. I mean, the only

          6  entities it is not cost-effective for are some of

          7  the agencies who have to -- because actually when

          8  Jennifer talked about program fees, the program fees

          9  that theoretically we are supposed to collect from

         10  clients, actually offset our DASIS reimbursement, it

         11  is not added to it. Those program fees are supposed

         12  to offset what we get.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I see.

         14                 And then finally, and some of the

         15  members have some quick questions, is there any

         16  question in your mind, when you look at this

         17  Division of AIDS Services Income Support DASIS, and

         18  its attempts to thwart Local Law 49, and its

         19  attempts to add the EVR process in contravention to

         20  the law, the case they just lost, in an attempt to

         21  perhaps treat HIV positive, other HIV positive

         22  welfare recipients who are not yet part of DASIS in

         23  a way that jeopardizes their federal benefit, and

         24  now these Scatter Site changes, that this is sort of

         25  a pattern designed, if not by the people who run
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          2  DASIS, although it may well be, by the people who

          3  run HRA, Commissioner Turner and his Deputy Mr.

          4  Hoover will be testifying, his First Deputy,

          5  designed by them in carrying out the mandate of this

          6  Administration as it relates to denying services to

          7  those in need in this City?

          8                 MS. QUATTROCHI: I think DASIS has

          9  mission amnesia. For those of us who have been

         10  around for many years, you know, somebody got up at

         11  a meeting recently and said, we need an agency that

         12  will expedite entitlements in housing for people

         13  living with AIDS and we said, well, that was DASIS.

         14  That is why DASIS was created in 1985. If it stuck

         15  to its original mission, we would not be in the

         16  shape that we are now.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you. Let

         18  me just do a couple of things. We have been joined

         19  by Council Member Watkins, another member of the

         20  Committee, and again, as I expressed we have

         21  virtually all of the members who fully participate

         22  in the work of this Committee. Council Members

         23  Perkins, Watkins and Eldridge have questions, and

         24  Quinn. So, four of them have questions, who will try

         25  to be brief, and then we will be ready to sort of
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          2  start what amounts to the second half of the hearing

          3  so-to-speak, of the Administration.

          4                 Let me turn to Council Member Perkins

          5  first, having done some particular work, as I say,

          6  with the group, the Harlem Directors Group,

          7  certainly known to all of you, and then we will

          8  continue with the balance of the members.

          9                 Council Member Perkins.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman. And to the panel, thank you very much.

         12                 I wanted to just ask, I see quite a

         13  number of the folks that are here to witness this

         14  hearing, wearing a t-shirt that says "the AIDS

         15  Crisis isn't over," and I would like someone, Ms.

         16  Cozier, or whoever, to relate that T-shirt --

         17                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

         18  "Until it is over for everyone."

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: "Until it is

         20  over for everyone." Okay, thank you very much, I

         21  couldn't see that far. Thank you.

         22                 "The AIDS crisis isn't over until it

         23  is over for everyone", and I would like to see how

         24  this proposal could change the Scatter Site model,

         25  aggravates that or makes that T-shirt, that message,
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          2  even truer.

          3                 MS. HAYES-COZIER: One of the things I

          4  think that we have an overall concern is, and that

          5  is the recent policies that have come down, and I

          6  think my colleagues have talked about it and I think

          7  some presenters before have talked about it, and I

          8  have to ask the question why now, versus five, ten

          9  years ago, why now? If you look at the faces of the

         10  people in the audience, and I hope you don't mind,

         11  if you can just stand up if you are wearing a

         12  T-shirt. Look at the changing faces of this

         13  epidemic, and I would hope and I would pray to God

         14  that because these faces are changing this epidemic,

         15  that the rules aren't changing in this epidemic.

         16                 I don't know if that answers your

         17  question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, it does

         19  get closer to it, but be a little more explicit

         20  about the changes in the faces. Are they getting

         21  three ears, instead of two ears? What's happening?

         22                 MS. HAYES-COZIER: They are getting

         23  more tanned in nature.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Just for the

         25  record. You see, the record doesn't see. The record
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          2  doesn't see, so sometimes it is important to be

          3  explicit in language about what we are trying to say

          4  even though we kind of have an idea.

          5                 MS. HAYES-COZIER: Okay. And I say

          6  that not only in this City, but across the country,

          7  I think we are seeing rules change, particularly in

          8  this City in the last two or three years the rules

          9  have definitely been encouraged to change. What we

         10  see is we see the faces of African-Americans and

         11  Latinos. We also see women, we also see gay men, in

         12  particular, African-American and Latino gay men. The

         13  numbers are rising and again, as the numbers rise in

         14  those communities, so do the rules in terms of how

         15  we apply those rules.

         16                 MS. QUATTROCHI: Yes, around the City

         17  in Scatter Site, 70 to 90 percent of the people

         18  living in Scatter Site are women and men of color.

         19  Seventy to 90 percent, depending on the program.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         21                 Council Member Watkins and then

         22  Eldridge and then Quinn. Then we will rap this

         23  section up.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 Was there or has there been any

          3  attempt to grandfather in those people in apartments

          4  now, even though their leases are going to come up

          5  for review? Has that been under discussion at all?

          6                 MS. QUATTROCHI: As of today we have

          7  no official letter from DASIS, we have no official

          8  letter from DASIS directing us to begin to

          9  transition leases.

         10                 Again, this has been discussed, it

         11  has been stated by Deputy Commissioner Caldwell and

         12  his staff at meetings both large and small, but we

         13  have no official letter.

         14                 But the new providers who just came

         15  on as a result of the recent RFP, again, are being

         16  told this is a model they have to set up and start

         17  up, but we have no official letter yet.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: I mean, it is

         19  so incredible. We will have the administration

         20  coming but to make it real, as one of your panel

         21  members said, from a point of view of someone in a

         22  family where we do own some rental property, my

         23  mother who is a very senior citizen, she is over 90,

         24  but she owns a home that was our family home for, I

         25  think they have had that place since 1928,
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          2  three-family brownstone. The rents are not high, for

          3  two-bedroom, I think her rent, the rent that she is

          4  charging for a two-bedroom apartment for $700, $725,

          5  okay? Now, what I want to know, have they put into

          6  this guideline, this request, something that says if

          7  a person such as my mother has to reduce her rent to

          8  $650, they are going to reduce her liability for the

          9  oil bills with oil going up right now, because she

         10  is obligated to provide heat and hot water; are they

         11  going to -- do they tell you that they are going to

         12  reduce her responsibility for keeping that place

         13  clean for paying somebody to clean the common areas

         14  and sweep the streets and see about garbage

         15  collection? I am not talking about major big

         16  landlords, landlords of multiple buildings, I am

         17  talking about people who have small places.

         18                 MS. QUATTROCHI: Well, the additional

         19  tragedy of this proposal is that, and we would love

         20  your mother's name, by the way, that is a great

         21  price on an apartment, the tragedy is that many of

         22  the landlords, when we started in 1985, people still

         23  didn't know the means of transmission, many

         24  landlords, out of the goodness of their hearts

         25  really, because they weren't making a lot of money
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          2  off this model, rented apartments to people like

          3  your mother, you know, in small family buildings,

          4  and these are the landlords, again, who have stuck

          5  with many of us, but it is a sellers market. They

          6  are not going to agree out of the goodness of their

          7  heart to take a rent that may be a half or a third

          8  of what they are now getting because DASIS says so.

          9  DASIS has no authority over landlords.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: They can

         11  afford to in many expects.

         12                 I just wanted to know whether it was

         13  grandfathered. I have to say this, he will be here,

         14  but it is amazing to us sitting up here that one of

         15  the Deputy Commissioners whose name I will not call,

         16  has been in the newspaper for having come into New

         17  York City, purchasing apartments in Manhattan, and

         18  renting them at very high rents to members of HRA.

         19                 I mean this is a fact. I find this

         20  incredible and unconscionable. I cannot see how you

         21  could buy an apartment and rent this apartment at

         22  thousands of dollars to people who come from other

         23  places to work in HRA, and then put a cap on people

         24  with disabilities for less, way less than the market

         25  rate for an apartment in a City with a one percent
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          2  vacancy rate.

          3                      CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank

          4  you, Council Member.

          5                 I know there is no question there, it

          6  is an important statement for the record, the

          7  Council Member's sentiments. Eloquently put.

          8                 Council Member Eldridge and Quinn

          9  will finish this. We have been joined by Assemblyman

         10  Dick Gottfried, he is here I believe, and as we do

         11  the transition we want to allow the Assemblyman to

         12  make a brief comment. But let me turn to Council

         13  Member Eldridge and Quinn and then we will move this

         14  panel.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It is

         16  interesting, in the district I represent we have the

         17  reverse problem. We had a not-for-profit that leased

         18  two floors in an SRO hotel and they leased it in

         19  their name, while the SRO Law Project tried to get

         20  them to transfer that one lease to all of the

         21  individual tenants.

         22                 The hotel has now been sold and the

         23  clients or the residents of the program have no

         24  legal standing in their units, so we find in a way

         25  that it goes back and forth.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 If in fact you were successful in

          3  negotiating a lease with a landlord at the same

          4  rate, that tenant then would be protected, right?

          5                 MS. QUATTROCHI: Yes, but --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  And

          7  succeeding tenants, because it would become rent

          8  stabilized.

          9                 MS. QUATTROCHI: The thing to remember

         10  is those programs exist already, housing placement

         11  programs which do exactly that exist.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I see.

         13                 MS. QUATTROCHI: There are 1,800 units

         14  of Scatter Site, that is what we are talking about.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Do you think

         16  this move by the Administration has been pushed or

         17  supported by the Rent Stabilization Board? I mean is

         18  it because of landlords? What reason do you think

         19  they are doing this for?

         20                 MS. QUATTROCHI: I think you should

         21  ask the Deputy Commissioner that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I

         23  understand, but I would like to know what you think

         24  before I ask them.

         25                 MS. QUATTROCHI: I think it is to save
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          2  money.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Well, we will

          4  ask them in a few moments.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But let me

          6  just go further than this. You could have a resident

          7  living in one of these Scatter Site housing who then

          8  is forced to go into the WEP program under existing,

          9  or the new regulations; is that right?

         10                 MS. FLYNN: Not yet.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: If they

         12  continue to change the things that we think.

         13                 MS. FLYNN: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So they

         15  could be in the WEP program. How does that affect

         16  then their housing allowance?

         17                 MS. FLYNN: Well, under the current

         18  model, the model that we are using before these new

         19  changes --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It wouldn't

         21  affect it at all.

         22                 MS. FLYNN: You wouldn't lose your

         23  housing because the non-profit would protect the

         24  client and act as a safety net.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Right.
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          2  Right.

          3                 MS. FLYNN: But if they are no longer

          4  a part of the nonprofit and they are not on the

          5  organization's client list anymore, then there is no

          6  protection. It is just them and the landlord dealing

          7  with each other.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Right.

          9                 And if that resident of the Scatter

         10  Site housing has now forced into the WEP program,

         11  and faces all of those problems that we anticipate

         12  would happen if you had HIV positive people in WEP,

         13  and that person had a history of drug usage, and is

         14  then forced into a drug treatment program in

         15  addition to the WEP assignment, is that what we are

         16  saying? Or would that be instead of the work

         17  assignment? Does anybody have an answer to that?

         18                 MS. FLYNN: As it is proposed, it is

         19  instead of, actually it is instead of. Right now it

         20  is instead of. But if you don't comply with the drug

         21  treatment program that they send you to --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Then you are

         23  off the rolls. Then you have no money to pay your

         24  rent. Then you are evicted.

         25                 MS. FLYNN: Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

          4  Council member.

          5                 Finally, Council Member Quinn.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just wanted

          7  to add to what Council Member Watkins said, and

          8  let's not forget that Commissioner then gave raised

          9  to those staff members so they could pay their rent,

         10  last I heard. So, I would be happy if I am proved

         11  wrong, there is no raises for DAS clients coming up.

         12                 I wanted to just raise another thing

         13  that I believe is going on in my district, that I

         14  would just like to tell you whether I am correct,

         15  that these changes will make that work.

         16                 In some of the neighborhoods in my

         17  district, as you mentioned, Gina, are under

         18  gentrification pressures, and there has historically

         19  and remains to be many people in my district who are

         20  people living with AIDS, I have seen landlords who

         21  have for years rented to people with AIDS, when

         22  Chelsea, for example, was less gentrified, now want

         23  to move those people out because they can make a lot

         24  more money for people who kind of were filling their

         25  apartments during what they saw as the bad times now
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          2  are not worth anything to them, quite frankly

          3  because they can get so much more.

          4                 Given that, I see these changes in

          5  Scatter Site as a green light to landlords for

          6  harassment. And I would assume that this will

          7  dramatically increase the harassment and decreases

          8  in services, et cetera, that clients have to deal

          9  with. And, you know, I have seen in my district

         10  landlords turning off the electricity so people's

         11  medication goes bad, to, you know, turning the heat

         12  off and sewage backing up at the people's sinks.

         13                 Now, I guess my question is, you all

         14  do Citywide work and work in different

         15  neighborhoods, is what I have seen and experienced

         16  and fear will increase somehow limited just to my

         17  district, or do you see this as a potential for

         18  serious increased harassment?

         19                 MS. QUATTROCHI: Well, you know, we

         20  have apartments Citywide, Chelsea, Clinton, parts of

         21  Brooklyn, upper west side, it is happening

         22  everywhere. And you know, one of the things we asked

         23  DASIS to do from the beginning, because one of the

         24  things that would help is if the rent stabilization

         25  laws were changed to cover non-for-profits renting
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          2  apartments for clients. We said, you know, go with

          3  us to Albany, let's try and make a change, and that

          4  was rejected by them.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can I just say

          6  one other thing? And I just want to reiterate how

          7  dangerous I think that harassment is, both in loss

          8  of housing stock, but also on people's health. I

          9  mean, that is an incredibly dangerous and stressful

         10  situation.

         11                 I just want to make sure I understand

         12  this before the Administration comes up.

         13                 In your guy's testimony you said that

         14  there is a bonus if you move people into independent

         15  living situations, so that would mean that they

         16  would get less or no casework or social work, or

         17  case management from non-profits in question?

         18                 MS. HERMAN: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         20                 So, you could argue that then you get

         21  a bonus if you cut down your service role? Right?

         22  You get more money if you serve less people.

         23                 MS. FLYNN: It is five percent. It is

         24  a performance-based.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But the goal
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          2  for this more money isn't to serve more people or to

          3  serve more people in more ways, or what I would

          4  argue a good goal, the goal which gets you more in

          5  this administration is to in fact do less.

          6                 MS. QUATTROCHI: And to transition

          7  people quickly, whatever that means.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, it is to do

          9  more, do it faster, and I assume, but please correct

         10  me if I am wrong, that there is no qualitative

         11  review of the speed and the additional numbers to

         12  make sure that you haven't transitioned somebody too

         13  quickly and perhaps put them in peril of a relapse

         14  or a health condition or something. No one is

         15  checking the quality of the speed, are they?

         16                 MS. QUATTROCHI: Well, DASIS has a new

         17  quality assurance department, but we don't know what

         18  its role will be in this.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But less gets

         20  you more?

         21                 MS. FLYNN: Yes, let gets more.

         22                 MS. HERMAN: And more gets you less.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: There you go.

         24  That's interesting.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you very

          3  much, folks.

          4                 Just before we bring up the

          5  Administration, Assemblyman I think you have a brief

          6  comment? Chair of, of course, the Health Committee

          7  of the New York State Assembly, Assemblyman Dick

          8  Gottfried.

          9                 Then of course we will hear from

         10  Deputy Commissioner Gregory Caldwell, who runs the

         11  Division of AIDS Services and Income Support, and I

         12  understand Mark Hoover as well is here, the First

         13  Deputy Commissioner of HRA.

         14                 Assemblyman, please.

         15                 ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED: Thank you very

         16  much. I very much appreciate your giving me the

         17  opportunity to speak at this point in the hearing.

         18                 I think it is important to understand

         19  that the policies you are hearing about today are

         20  designed exclusively to cut, to cut spending, to cut

         21  services, to cut the number of people who received

         22  benefits, that those policies are designed to do

         23  that without any real regard for the impact on the

         24  people who should be served. And as Chair of the

         25  Health Committee in the Assembly, I can tell you,
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          2  that when you do that to people with HIV whether you

          3  mean to or not, when you do that to people with HIV,

          4  many of those people, as a result of the impact that

          5  these policies will have on their lives and their

          6  health, many of them are going to die sooner than

          7  they would otherwise.

          8                 Now, I know that is sometimes

          9  regarded as a harsh thing to say, but to not say it

         10  and to pretend that that is not the impact of these

         11  policies, I think is wrong.

         12                 I am not going to go into the

         13  particulars of the policies before you, because the

         14  previous panel and people from Housing Works and

         15  others who you are going to hear from today have

         16  done that superbly well, and I have listened to

         17  their analysis and it is entirely accurate.

         18                 I just want to mention maybe two

         19  points about a couple of the particulars.

         20                 Number one, and I don't know if the

         21  so-called HOPWA swap is directly on your agenda

         22  today, but the purpose of that three-card monte

         23  shuffle, the purpose of it is specifically to enable

         24  the City to cut back on what it spends on housing

         25  for people with HIV, and to fill the gap with the
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          2  money that we fought for and won in Albany that was

          3  meant to provide an improvement, an increase, in

          4  housing opportunities for people with AIDS, the

          5  HOPWA swap will deprive the people of New York City

          6  of that benefit of that increased funding, and the

          7  City will use it instead to fill the hole that it

          8  wants to intentionally create in that funding.

          9                 That is wrong. When the City asked

         10  HUD for permission to do that, many members of the

         11  Council, a lot of community groups, we got a whole

         12  bunch of members of the assembly and the senate to

         13  write to HUD saying, please don't let them do that,

         14  and HUD said no and told them not to come back and

         15  ask again. They are still asking again.

         16                 And I think it is important to

         17  understand what they are doing there, because I

         18  think it highlights what the motive here is.

         19                 I also want to just mention the

         20  question of whether, on the Scatter Site question as

         21  to whether shifting people to having their own name

         22  on the lease is a well intentioned effort to get

         23  them rent stabilization protection, I think any

         24  reasonably decent and creative housing lawyer before

         25  dinner time tonight could write a contract that
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          2  would maintain the current arrangement in its

          3  essence, and if there is a necessity to technically

          4  have the tenants name on the lease, to arrange for

          5  that while still maintaining the basic overview role

          6  of the non-profit organization, it would not be

          7  difficult to work that kind of an arrangement, if,

          8  in fact, it is technically needed. But what the City

          9  has put on the table does not do that.

         10                 I just want to say, I think it is

         11  important in analyzing these polices and policies

         12  relating to the human services benefit in general,

         13  that number one, you have to consider the impact of

         14  the policies on people who have little or no

         15  resources, people who have enormous difficulties in

         16  their lives, in coping with the days events that to

         17  you or I are nothing to deal with, people who often

         18  bring limited language abilities and other

         19  difficulties to their abilities to cope, and when

         20  you consider the impact that these polices have on

         21  their lives, you have to think of them in those

         22  context. You have to analyze these policies with the

         23  understanding that there will be a large number of

         24  glitches in the way they operate, given the best

         25  intentions on the part of the Administration, and
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          2  that those glitches will again impact people who

          3  have little or no resources.

          4                 You know, we in the State Legislature

          5  spent six months this year, or four and a half

          6  months this year, without a paycheck. Most of us

          7  were able ultimately to deal with that, most of us

          8  had savings we could dip into, it was annoying, we

          9  lost interest on the savings, et cetera, but you

         10  know something, we all coped, although there were a

         11  couple of my colleagues who had a more difficult

         12  time than a couple of the others. But we are talking

         13  here about people who don't have that kind of

         14  resource.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That's a good

         16  point, Assemblyman.

         17                 ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED: And who don't

         18  have the ability, if they are not getting their

         19  check for a few months while somebody downtown

         20  straightens it out, well they will dip into their

         21  savings, that is not the position they are in.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         23                 ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED: Worse than

         24  that, we are talking about intentional glitches, and

         25  intentional hurdles that are being thrown in the
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          2  paths of people. These policies are being brought to

          3  us by an agency that tells us that their conscious

          4  policy is to create a crisis in the personal lives

          5  of people who are in these positions and who have

          6  expressed regret at the fact that people's access to

          7  things like drug treatment and domestic violence

          8  shelters make it harder for them to create a crisis

          9  in their personal lives. We are talking about an

         10  administration that has been found guilty of callous

         11  disregard for people's needs and for laws in exactly

         12  this area, found guilty by federal courts, by the

         13  Health Care Finance Agency, by HUD, by the State

         14  Department of Health under a Republican governor.

         15  You have to look at these policies in that context,

         16  and I think when you do you understand that the

         17  reality here is that people will suffer enormously

         18  if these policies are allowed to go into effect, and

         19  many of them, as I said, will die sooner than they

         20  otherwise would.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you for

         23  your time participating in our work. As you know,

         24  this is the work of the Committee, it has been, and

         25  we take great care to look at each of these issues
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          2  in just that light, because I share many of those

          3  sentiments that you raise.

          4                 Thank you so much.

          5                 ASSEMBLYMAN GOTTFRIED: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, Gregory

          8  Caldwell, the Deputy Commissioner of DASIS, and Mark

          9  Hoover, the First Deputy Commissioner from HRA.

         10                 As you know all witnesses are first

         11  addressed by counsel, so as you take the witness

         12  table, I direct your attention to Counsel to the

         13  Committee, and then we will begin moments after

         14  that.

         15                 MR. NEWMAN: Please raise your right

         16  hand.

         17                 Do you swear or affirm that the

         18  testimony you are about to give is the truth?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: I

         20  do.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: I do.

         22                 MR. NEWMAN: Please state your names

         23  and affiliation for the record.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: I

         25  am Mark Hoover, I am the First Deputy Commissioner
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          2  of HRA.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Gregory

          4  Caldwell, Deputy Commissioner of Division of AIDS

          5  Services and Income Support.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Now, folks, I

          7  am going to ask everyone to be quiet and attentive

          8  so that we can hear the testimony and get to the

          9  important array of questions that we have for the

         10  Administration.

         11                 And as you both begin, if either or

         12  both of you are going to testify, it would certainly

         13  be my preference and hope that the testimony speaks

         14  directly to the specific issues that we raised in

         15  advance and reflect the areas of concern raised by

         16  the witnesses, which are basically the same, and of

         17  course, it is my understanding that the Deputy

         18  Administrator, Deputy Commissioner and Deputy

         19  Administrator Caldwell runs the agency, I don't see

         20  testimony from Mr. Caldwell but unless he is here

         21  just simply for show, we hope that we can get some

         22  direct answers from him as well, although I

         23  understand you are his boss, Commissioner Hoover, we

         24  want to make sure that we are going to get directly

         25  to the point of contention.
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          2                 So, why don't you begin.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          4  Good morning, Chairman DiBrienza, members of the

          5  Committee. My name is Mark Hoover, and I am the

          6  First Deputy Commissioner of HRA. I am here today to

          7  provide information regarding the issues that you

          8  have raised. However, after listening to the

          9  testimony, I think that there is perhaps a

         10  considerable misunderstanding, so I thought we could

         11  go over each one of these issues, and I could

         12  basically respond to some of the concerns that you

         13  and the group has raised.

         14                 On the first issue of engagement,

         15  there is no intent, I repeat, no intent to require

         16  mandatory engagement in any way of the current DAS

         17  population at all. They are totally exempt.

         18                 Furthermore, anyone that is applying,

         19  has applied to SSI is exempt and will continue to be

         20  exempt.

         21                 Currently the individuals that have

         22  HIV positive are required to be engaged who are not

         23  DAS eligible, they are just part of the general PA

         24  population.

         25                 And to the extent that they have
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          2  voluntarily, I repeat, voluntarily identified that

          3  they have HIV, no way are we using any records that

          4  HRA has to identify people but to the extent that

          5  they have self-identified, we feel that it would be

          6  a value to actually invest in additional case

          7  management for those individuals and to try to

          8  design, carefully design engagement programs for

          9  those people and now have them involved --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: What is an

         11  engagement program? I want to follow you. What does

         12  that mean, engagement?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: Let

         14  me go back --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I just want to

         16  understand what you are saying.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         18  Okay. Engagement is that they are required under

         19  federal and state law to be engaged in appropriate

         20  welfare to work activity, which includes training,

         21  treatment, and movement to work successful.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I just wasn't

         23  familiar with the one word "engagement".

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         25  Fine.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You mean the

          3  WEP program?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That is what

          6  95, 99 percent of your folks do is the WEP program.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: I

          8  am sorry, they are involved in large amounts of

          9  training, we are spending over $200 million on

         10  training, so they are not just involved in the WEP

         11  Program.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That's the

         13  basis of your existence, the WEP Program. Everyone

         14  else, unless the entire last four years have been a

         15  nightmare or a bad dream, I mean that is the basis

         16  of your program.

         17                 It's okay. I understand there is a

         18  training component, an education component, so on

         19  and so on such that exists. We may disagree of the

         20  value placed on it, but it sounded so sterile, the

         21  "engagement" process, I didn't know what you were

         22  talking about. It's about the WEP program basically

         23  and all its elements.

         24                 Why don't you go on.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: So,
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          2  since this population is required now, and it is

          3  already being engaged, it appeared appropriate to be

          4  more, as you have discussed and we have discussed

          5  with you, to actually pay attention to the various

          6  issues that special populations have, and what HRA

          7  has been designing is special approaches to those

          8  populations that are required to be engaged in terms

          9  of trying to pay attention to all of the issues that

         10  the individuals have, including their health issues

         11  in this case, and to actually provide integrated

         12  case management approaches.

         13                 And so what we are actually planning

         14  to do is hire additional case managers for this

         15  population that is now not case managed, and to

         16  carefully design programs for them that integrate

         17  their health issues with their welfare to work

         18  issues which they are now required to participate

         19  in.

         20                 So, that is the issue --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Let me see if

         22  I got it.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         24  That's fine.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: In your sworn
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          2  testimony here today, you are saying that current

          3  Division of AIDS Services and Income Support clients

          4  are not required to engage in workfare and/or any of

          5  the related components you offer.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          7  Correct. And there is no plan to change that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You are saying

          9  that for a subset of the general public assistance

         10  population who have somehow self-identified as being

         11  HIV positive, but are not DASIS clients --

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         13  That is correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: None of them

         15  are required to engage in workfare or the related

         16  components?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No.

         18  They are now and always have been, ever since the

         19  welfare reform law changed, been required to be

         20  engaged.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, required

         22  --

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: It

         24  is nothing new.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. Well,
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          2  that is not accurate actually. As you know, there

          3  are participation rates, which we have already

          4  exceeded, it is the Giuliani Administration's and

          5  Mr. Turner's and yourself's view that it must

          6  ultimately be 100 percent, even though it well

          7  exceeds federal requirements, and there are

          8  exemptions. If you were to read their HIV status as

          9  exempt, as a reason for exemption, they could well

         10  be exempt even though they are not in DASIS. So, you

         11  shouldn't be inaccurate.

         12                 I understand your position, I don't

         13  agree with it at all, but I understand it.

         14                 So, that population, you are

         15  determined to have them all engaged in workfare and

         16  the related opportunities that you offer, and to do

         17  that you are going to spend some more case

         18  management money to make sure that these HIV

         19  positive, this whatever number of subset of the PA

         20  population that is HIV positive can engage in

         21  workfare and other related activity.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         25  They are already being engaged. What this effort is,
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          2  is to hire case managers and to design, specially

          3  design programs that take into consideration their

          4  health and other issues so that we can in fact

          5  assist them in all of the issues in terms of

          6  maintaining as much self sufficiency as they are

          7  able to in a supportive way. That is what this is

          8  about, period.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: It

         11  is nothing new or different other than that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Well, I am not

         13  sure that I am following what you are trying to say.

         14                 There is a public assistance

         15  population, we know your goal is to have 100 percent

         16  of them in workfare, we know that you use it and all

         17  of its hurdles to sanction off more people than you

         18  can document have real jobs. But I didn't want to

         19  have a hearing about that. I am just talking about

         20  this particular client, you know, subset. And some

         21  of them you are saying are self-identified at HIV,

         22  you are trying to say you have ignored it up until

         23  now and forced them into workfare and now you are

         24  going to do some specialized case management for

         25  them? Are you trying to say that they are already in
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          2  workfare, so the fact that we are going to now

          3  design a better program for them, you should be --

          4  should be welcomed?

          5                 I mean, are you trying to say that

          6  the fact that they are HIV positive shouldn't lead

          7  you to exempt them? Doesn't put at risk their

          8  attempt to get federal disability? Be very specific.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         10  They are not exempt now, they have not been exempt.

         11  Many of them are engaged already, I believe --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Do you have a

         13  problem saying in workfare? Why do you keep saying

         14  engaged?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         16  Pardon?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Do you have a

         18  problem saying what you do, which is put them into

         19  the workfare program?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         21  Yes, I do. I really have a problem --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         24  Because I have many, many other activities other

         25  than workfare that they are engaged in. So, I think
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          2  it is inappropriate to in fact describe it in that

          3  way.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          6  Because I think we have put huge amounts of

          7  contracts in place and programs in place that are

          8  not WEP.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I see. Is it

         10  your testimony that is not the cornerstone of your

         11  entire welfare reform effort any longer? That the

         12  tens of thousands of the ten, 20, 30, 40, 50,000,

         13  the largest number in the world are fully engaged in

         14  the WEP program, that is the basis and essence of

         15  your welfare reform efforts, that is somehow no

         16  longer the position of this Administration?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: The

         18  position of the Administration is to successfully

         19  move people to real jobs so they can support

         20  themselves and their families.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I am asking

         22  you whether or not you are testifying that WEP is no

         23  longer the essence of your program. I certainly

         24  don't want to discuss whether or not you have moved

         25  anyone in a job, you can't document that, and that
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          2  is not what the hearing is about. We are getting way

          3  off the topic here, which is what you want to do

          4  anyway, I am sure.

          5                 So, why don't you continue with your

          6  presentation and members have questions.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Can we just

          8  -- I mean, before we go on with this presentation,

          9  what would be good to just understand what this

         10  means about "engaged"; so can I ask this one

         11  question?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: The people,

         14  the clients of DASIS are clients that are

         15  symptomatic, HIV positive and ill, right?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         17  Correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So they are

         19  exempt from an engagement?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         21  Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But you are

         23  now saying that the clients who are HIV positive,

         24  but asymptomatic, no visible illness --

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:
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          2  Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: They may be

          4  on medication, no? If you are asymptomatic, you

          5  still could be on medication. Those people are

          6  currently being engaged or it is your intention to

          7  put them into some program; is that what you are

          8  saying?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         10  They are already required to be engaged, unless they

         11  have other medical issues to exempt them.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: How many

         13  people who are HIV positive, asymptomatic, are

         14  currently in either a WEP program or a related

         15  program?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: We

         17  are currently analyzing those people who have

         18  voluntarily indicated that they are HIV, so I don't

         19  have that figure but we would be happy to provide it

         20  to you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It is my

         22  understanding that if you were HIV positive, there

         23  was an unwritten practice of not putting you into a

         24  WEP program or any of those other related programs.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:
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          2  There are a number of people who have HIV positive

          3  and have self-identified in the current engaged

          4  program.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And were

          6  they in the program a year ago?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          8  Pardon?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Were there

         10  HIV, asymptomatic HIV people in programs a year ago?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: I

         12  don't know. I don't know if anyone looked at it

         13  before.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So that is

         15  the difference, is that the agency is now looking at

         16  it, and if you are asymptomatic HIV you are becoming

         17  whatever, engaged in some program?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No.

         19  What we are looking at is trying to develop unique

         20  programs, like we have Pride with the State Rehab

         21  Department, and the disability providers in the city

         22  for those people who have disabilities. We are

         23  working with the refugee community in terms of --

         24  and the volags (phonetic), the voluntary placement

         25  agencies develop special programs for them. We are
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          2  developing programs around issues.

          3                 If you are in domestic violence, then

          4  we think it makes sense to try to develop. If you

          5  are going to be in engaged programs that wrap around

          6  the other issues you may have. If you are in

          7  Probation, then we are working with the Probation

          8  Department.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So you are

         10  now developing programs for asymptomatic HIV

         11  clients, right? That is what you are saying. Okay.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         13  Well, we think it makes sense to develop programs

         14  that pay attention, rather than just treating them

         15  as part of the general population. That's all.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: No, it's not

         17  true. It is not part of the general population. It

         18  is part of the symptomatic, the HIV illness, the HIV

         19  positive people who have medical problems, who have

         20  been exempt, you are now choosing to take

         21  asymptomatic HIV people and not associate them with

         22  the HIV people who have symptoms but put them into

         23  the general population and because you are providing

         24  special programs for general population people, you

         25  are developing a new program for these HIV positive
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          2  people, no?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: No?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: It's fine. You

          6  know what, let me just -- many of us might believe

          7  that you will go through setting up some program for

          8  HIV positive folks who are in the public assistance

          9  population, who happen to have self-identified, and

         10  it will be for reasons other than what you state,

         11  and that in fact you could have just as well said,

         12  oh, we have discovered 1,000 people who are on

         13  public assistance who happen to have

         14  self-identified, who are in an engagement, which is

         15  a WEP program, and we are now just going to take

         16  them out, we are going to exempt them. You will

         17  never do that.

         18                 So, instead you will develop a

         19  program and who could argue with the theory that you

         20  developed a specialized WEP or other assistance

         21  program for those, since they are already in the

         22  general WEP program, you have now discovered that

         23  they are HIV positive and you present it as a

         24  positive thing, and that's fine. I don't believe it.

         25  I don't believe that is your motivation, and I don't
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          2  believe that will be the end result, but that is

          3  fine. At least I understand now what you are saying.

          4  You are saying you have discovered, all of a sudden

          5  through the self-identification process some number

          6  of public assistance recipients who are in, I would

          7  guess a WEP program already, and now you want to

          8  give them a specialized program. Isn't that what you

          9  are saying?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         11  That's correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, that is

         13  what you are saying. And that's fine.

         14                 You don't know the number of people

         15  involved.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No,

         17  we are still in the process.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You are still

         19  in the process. And they are already engaged in WEP,

         20  for the most part, and you want to now create this

         21  special program for them.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: They are not

         23  taking people now into the WEP program, they are

         24  adding people to the WEP program, but these are

         25  people who have historically been excluded.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That will be

          3  the second result.

          4                 The Commissioner, although I don't

          5  believe this purpose or the essence of why he is

          6  doing it, is as stated, says it is the people who

          7  are already engaged who have self-identified; is

          8  that the record?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: It

         10  is people who may be either engaged or not.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. Well,

         12  now you are being a little clearer. So, it is both

         13  people already engaged who happen to have

         14  self-identified, and those who historically would

         15  have been exempt and we believe should still remain

         16  exempt, who you will now force into WEP, but you

         17  will do it in a specialized program and want a medal

         18  for that, and we don't particularly agree that this

         19  is a very effective or very rewarding kind of

         20  exercise for such a small needy population, but I

         21  know you do.

         22                 Are you saying, more importantly, are

         23  you saying you developed an agency to do this, HASA,

         24  that they will be a subset of HRA who will deal with

         25  only HIV positive recipients who are not in DASIS;
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          2  is that what this HASA is all about?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          4  Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And will it be

          6  a formal sub agency? Will it have a director? Will

          7  it have an assistant? Is it a prelude to eliminating

          8  DASIS? What exactly is the structure of HASA?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: It

         10  is just another unit. It does not affect in any way

         11  DASIS. It is another unit that we are setting up

         12  because rather than having these case managers

         13  commingled with the general OES BEGIN program, we

         14  are going to have it be a unit, and it is going to

         15  be with the full training that is given to the other

         16  case management staff in DASIS so that they are

         17  appropriately trained and so on.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So, of course

         19  that is one view of it.

         20                 One could also view it as an attempt

         21  by HRA to bypass local law 49 and the rigorous

         22  requirements that DASIS has placed upon it that the

         23  courts have confirmed are placed upon it, and to

         24  keep their number of clients at the point they are

         25  at or lower, and begin to work with HIV positive
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          2  clients who, for lack of a better word, your general

          3  reference has been, who find themselves in the

          4  general population, the general public assistance

          5  population, when in fact, since it is a progressive

          6  illness, many of those people, although we hope not,

          7  may well in fact progress in such a way that they

          8  could well be eligible for DASIS.

          9                 So, I am still not sure why you want

         10  to set up an additional part of the bureaucracy to

         11  deal with this population. You can't tell us how

         12  many people it is and it is likely that many of them

         13  would become DASIS eligible, and why wouldn't you

         14  either exempt them or move them over to DASIS now in

         15  an preemptive move? Why would you set up another

         16  bureaucracy so that, what, you can find 1,000 people

         17  who either already self identified or used to be

         18  informally exempt who can now basically put into the

         19  workfare program; why would you do that? Why would

         20  you set up another bureaucracy, if it is not to

         21  evade the more rigorous, service-oriented

         22  requirements of DASIS?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         24  Well, the reason -- and again, we obviously are

         25  going to have problems trying to communicate, but
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          2  again, we already have staff assigned who work with

          3  this population to engage them as the law specifies.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: And

          6  if they otherwise should be medically exempt, they

          7  are and they will continue to be, and again it does

          8  not in any way change fully exempting the DASIS

          9  population --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That I got.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: Or

         12  the people who are applying for SSI.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Let's --

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         15  Because I believe that was part of the concerns

         16  raised.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Yes, it is.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: So

         19  I think it is useful --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: It is very

         21  useful.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         23  That we can try to communicate.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. And

         25  let's see if we can summarize.
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          2                 Your sworn testimony is that DASIS

          3  clients are exempt and will remain exempt from

          4  workfare and related programs, correct?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          6  Correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Your testimony

          8  is there is some number of people, you don't know

          9  the amount --

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         11  Correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Some number of

         13  public assistance recipients who have

         14  self-identified as having HIV, and who are already

         15  involved in the workfare and related program. Just

         16  some number.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         18  Right. Who are in the process --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Who are in the

         20  process who are being told you have to be engaged.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         22  Correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, and two

         24  things flow from that. Some folks who are HIV

         25  positive who are already in workfare and related
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          2  programs, others who are HIV positive, used to be

          3  informally exempt, will also be told they have to be

          4  in workfare or related programs. And you are saying,

          5  what you believe is a positive thing to us, that you

          6  will create a special program for that universe of

          7  people.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          9  That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Special type

         11  of engagement.

         12                 And we are saying to you in part, not

         13  only should you continue to exempt informally, not

         14  only should you consider taking those who are HIV

         15  positive and retroactively exempting them, not only

         16  should you consider moving those who are progressing

         17  into DASIS, but it seems to be an excessive

         18  bureaucratic response to set up a separate agency,

         19  or separate subset, HASA, to deal with them, since I

         20  believe most of the purposes are ultimately

         21  disingenuous and designed to remove more people from

         22  the rolls.

         23                 So we are pretty clear that we

         24  disagree on that issue and apparently, according to

         25  advocates, which you haven't answered, many of the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            126

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  people, whether self-identified or not, who are HIV

          3  positive, not part of the Division of AIDS Services,

          4  applying for federal disability, when forced into

          5  workfare put that federal disability at risk; how do

          6  you deal with that?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          8  They are exempt. We do not force them into

          9  engagement or --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: If what? If

         11  they have received federal, or they have applied?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         13  Applied.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So your sworn

         15  testimony is any of that public assistance general

         16  population, who is either self-identified as HIV

         17  positive and already engaged or is going to be

         18  engaged, or you are going to now move them to

         19  engagement, they are applying for federal disability

         20  they are exempt, that is the stated policy.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         22  That's correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Is that

         24  written anywhere? Is there a directive, a policy of

         25  this division?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: It

          3  is written, yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, we would

          5  like a copy of the following, the written

          6  documentation that DASIS clients are and will remain

          7  exempt; the written documentation that

          8  self-identified HIV positive individuals in the

          9  general welfare population, if they are applying for

         10  federal benefits are exempt, and will remain exempt,

         11  and we would like the number of people who have up

         12  until now self-identified and are already engaged,

         13  which is a finite number. And the fourth and final

         14  thing, if you have an estimate of those who you are

         15  now going to move to engagement, albeit to give you

         16  -- your testimony, into a specialized program and

         17  whether or not that matters to any of us is, you

         18  know, where we disagree.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         20  Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: All right.

         22                 Does anyone have anything on HASA,

         23  and then we will move to the Scatter Site issue.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just have one

         25  question. I was told, as it relates to the origins
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          2  of HASA and the goal of HASA, I was told by numerous

          3  people within HRA, both, you know, high ranking and

          4  lower ranking, whatever, that there had been a

          5  series of meetings within HRA, around the 100

          6  percent compliance with the workfare goal, and that

          7  one of the things, that part of what happened in

          8  that meeting was an analysis of the populations

          9  which were not complying 100 percent because they

         10  had, let's call them special needs populations, you

         11  know, perhaps people with substance abuse or HIV

         12  positive people, and that in these meetings you

         13  looked at those special needs categories and

         14  developed plans for the various special need groups

         15  about how you could move them and achieve your goal

         16  of 100 percent compliance and HASA is the outcome of

         17  those meetings, whose goal was to get to 100 percent

         18  compliance for the special needs population of HIV

         19  non-DASIS clients. A) was there such a meeting? B)

         20  was that the goal of the meeting? And B), if that

         21  was the goal of the meeting, then it calls into

         22  question, in my opinion, some of the answers you

         23  gave to Council Member DiBrienza and Council Member

         24  Eldridge because it is really then about moving

         25  people in as opposed to making life better to those
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          2  who are already there.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          4  Again, we have a goal of engaging those people who

          5  are not otherwise exempt, since we are not changing

          6  who is exempt. And --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I am sorry, I

          8  am having trouble hearing you.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         10  Okay. So, we have had a goal of moving to full

         11  engagement and appropriate sets of treatment

         12  training and WEP and other work, part-time,

         13  full-time, paid work activity for everyone who is

         14  not exempt.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So -- I am

         16  sorry.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: And

         18  separately developing that engagement program we

         19  have separately, not as part of that, been actually

         20  in dialogue with not only you but internally for a

         21  long time that the welfare population actually

         22  consists of many specialized groups and that if you

         23  are going to work with those groups to help them

         24  move successfully to independence, or as much

         25  self-sufficiency as they are able to achieve, and as
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          2  much normalization of their lives, then you need to

          3  design programs to take into consideration other

          4  issues that they may have to be dealing with,

          5  disabilities, domestic violence, HIV positive, et

          6  cetera.

          7                 So, we have been working and

          8  developing programs, and coordinating with other

          9  City non-profit agencies, programs to try to design

         10  specialized programs that help people within their

         11  context of their special need.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So then just to

         13  sum up, answer to A is yes, answer to B is yes, so

         14  my sense that really we are talking about moving

         15  people in, as opposed to better serving those in,

         16  which the yes to A, yes to B, yes to that, does jive

         17  with what I was told by three of four members,

         18  different people that I have had conversations with,

         19  because it was odd, so when I was told this I went

         20  and sought to, you know, corroborate it with other

         21  people, so, just so we are clear, A yes, B yes, yes

         22  the goal is getting people in, not those in.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No,

         24  it is to get --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, you didn't
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          2  have meetings? Did you have meetings? Can you just

          3  answer the question, sir?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          5  Sure.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Did you have a

          7  series of meetings within HRA where you subdivided,

          8  looked at the special needs populations, of those

          9  who were potentially eligible for engagement,

         10  analyzed what their special needs were, and then

         11  came up with plans, with internal plans for how to

         12  move those special needs populations into 100

         13  percent compliance, HASA being the example that was

         14  developed for DAS. Did you have those meetings? And

         15  is that where HASA was born?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: The

         17  meetings were not as you described them, okay? So I

         18  will once again tell you.

         19                 We have had a policy of engaging all

         20  of those individuals who are not otherwise exempt,

         21  which the City has always had as a program objective

         22  and the laws of New York and the policies that the

         23  City is supposed to administer the program.

         24                 One of the separate issues in doing

         25  this, of the people who already are engaged and
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          2  those who subsequently may be called in, because

          3  there are huge numbers of new applicants every month

          4  that apply, is to try to develop special programs

          5  around their special needs, and that is what, yes,

          6  this and many other programs, and you have in

          7  previous testimony literally suggested that that

          8  would be a good idea to do that, and all I am saying

          9  is those programs are being developed.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Mr.

         11  Chairman, may I request that we have another hearing

         12  of this committee on all of these programs, because

         13  I am interested, for instance, in knowing --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No problem.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: -- How you

         16  are going to assign.

         17                 I haven't been away, I mean I may

         18  have been away for a week at a time, but I have not

         19  heard this term engagement before, and it strikes

         20  me. It is a very unpleasant term. It seems to me it

         21  is an assignment, it is not necessarily an

         22  engagement, and I find that distressing and I would

         23  like to understand it more fully but I don't think

         24  this is the proper setting for it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: It is just an

          4  antiseptic word the Commissioner can use for

          5  workfare, that's all.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It is a

          7  little fascistic, I am sorry.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: In any event,

          9  Commissioner, I understand your position, and we

         10  would like documentation on those four issues, and

         11  whether or not you believe creating a special

         12  program for HIV positive folks who are not in DAS is

         13  a helpful thing, and you are motivated by helping

         14  them or whether you just have to develop a program

         15  so that you can get any and all of those HIV

         16  positive folks into workfare, you know, is obviously

         17  subject to a great deal of debate, and you may say

         18  that as long as it specializes better and we should

         19  be appreciative of that or happy with that, but the

         20  problem is I don't care what you call it, I know

         21  what the program is, it is a workfare centered

         22  program, designed to put up as many obstacles as

         23  possible, to sanction off as many people as possible

         24  from the rolls, and you cannot document, this is not

         25  the subject of this hearing, you cannot document
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          2  that you have not sanctioned off more people than

          3  any other method, and that, in fact, you cannot

          4  document that people have gotten jobs that they have

          5  maintained in any significant way other than minor

          6  samples. And you choose to keep talking about

          7  400,000 people, when in fact two-thirds of them are

          8  children, so we are only talking about 150,000 or so

          9  adults. But that is all part of the rhetoric of this

         10  administration, and you know what, it is of little

         11  comfort to say we will force a whole bunch of HIV

         12  positive folks into workfare, but we will do it in a

         13  specialized way, when all of the rest of what you do

         14  and all of the rest of the evidence, both anecdotal

         15  and in communication, seem to indicate you are

         16  driven by one goal and one goal alone to reduce the

         17  rolls without regard to what happens to the people

         18  who are on those rolls.

         19                 So that is why we are not sort of

         20  overwhelmed with, you know, support, when you say

         21  for this subset population, as well as other subsets

         22  we will develop specialized engagement programs. So

         23  all that means is you will figure out another way to

         24  get them into your workfare programs and they will

         25  be a little different for each population.
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          2                 Anyway, can you tell me just one

          3  brief comment on the EVR case which you lost, which

          4  the Administration lost in a 7/0 Court of Appeals

          5  Decision; have you complied with the law yet and

          6  stopped the separate and duplicative EVR reviews,

          7  since the folks have already been determined

          8  eligible by DASIS?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         10  Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Is there any

         12  additional EVR, are there EVR personnel that have

         13  been transferred to the Division of AIDS Services to

         14  conduct them, you know, at DAS?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:  We

         16  have just discontinued EVR, period. We did that

         17  immediately on the day of the court action.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, that is

         19  helpful to know.

         20                 Now, the third topic is the Scatter

         21  Site changes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: In his

         23  testimony he has a short thing about SRO

         24  populations, and I would just like to hear it, but

         25  while you are looking it up I can sneak a question.
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          2  You are doing EVR of asymptomatic HIV? Are you?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          4  Well, I don't even know that we normally know that

          5  they --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Well, if

          7  they told you that they are HIV positive?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          9  Yes, the EVR program continues to apply to all other

         10  applicants.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. So,

         12  Commissioner, if in fact we hear of DASIS clients

         13  still being put through EVR, who do we contact to

         14  alert them to that slip up in this compliance with

         15  the law?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: You

         17  should contact the director of the --

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: You can

         19  contact me.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I am sorry,

         21  what's that?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: You can

         23  contact me directly.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Would you

         25  identify yourself for the record.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Gregory

          3  Caldwell, Deputy Commissioner of the Division of

          4  AIDS Services.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. So, it

          6  is your individual and collective sworn testimony

          7  that DASIS clients are no longer subject to a

          8  separate, and as the court indicated and as our law

          9  indicates, as the commentary indicates, the

         10  duplicative EVR process, you may not agree that it

         11  ever was, EVR process --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: That's

         13  correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And if anyone

         15  has put through EVR any DASIS clients, DASIS clients

         16  put through EVR, we should let you know about it.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Yes,

         18  absolutely. Absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And is there

         20  any written documentation to that effect, that you

         21  have sent them a memo saying they comply with the

         22  law?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Yes, we

         24  did.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So, that would
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          2  be the fifth thing we would like, a copy of the

          3  written documentation that directs DASIS to no

          4  longer, you know, after they determine eligibility

          5  to no longer send them over.

          6                 Now, Mr. Caldwell, before we leave

          7  that topic, has the review done by DASIS changed in

          8  any way? In other words, you didn't add EVR

          9  personnel, did you add 20 questions? Did you add six

         10  extra hours? Did you add additional reviews? What

         11  have you done differently?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Nothing

         13  has been changed.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. So, if

         15  we were to survey a dozen clients who went through

         16  the eligibility at DASIS and then EVR, which we

         17  thought was illegal then and interview the next

         18  dozen clients who go to DAS, DASIS now, they will

         19  have gone through the same procedures, you are

         20  absolutely sure about that?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:

         22  Absolutely sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: If they

         25  did it was a mistake.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Well,

          3  obviously this Administration has, in my opinion, a

          4  pension for ignoring or breaking the law, and since

          5  you lost the 7/0 decision in a complete review of

          6  the policies you engaged in, in this area, it

          7  shouldn't be of surprise to you that I have a fear

          8  that you might try to get around the Court of

          9  Appeals Decision, but I am glad to hear that that is

         10  not the case, and we will continue to monitor it.

         11                 There is a third topic we brought up

         12  today, which was Scatter Site housing changes. And

         13  before we get to that, there was one question --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: The

         15  Commissioner has a small chapter here about

         16  commercial SRO programs and the relocation of the

         17  case management.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Oh, yes, we

         19  did mention that also. Yes, we did mention that.

         20  Commissioner, we did mention that, which is there

         21  are 29 workers stationed at the SRO hotels where

         22  they were both effective and present for the

         23  clients, as well as the clients of DASIS, as well as

         24  other tenants. They were helpful to the community

         25  that these hotels are in, the SROs are in, because
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          2  sometimes they are worried about the impact, the

          3  quality of life issues, they knew they had a worker

          4  right there. You have transferred them, or you have

          5  told DAS to transfer them back to main offices or

          6  regional offices, and the question that was raised,

          7  although not testified to today, but we raised in

          8  passing was, why would you do that when, (a) it

          9  works, (b) they provide direct on-site services,

         10  they help the clients navigate, and their existence,

         11  and they help the communities that these SROs are

         12  located.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And they

         14  help with 1,600 other tenants in the SROs, in which

         15  a lot of the different facilities we have always

         16  depended on these on-site tenants of the SROs.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: The non-DASIS

         18  tenants. So what is the reason for having switched

         19  them?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         21  Again, I would be happy to read the testimony.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I appreciate

         23  that you didn't, because we are just covering the

         24  four topics.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No,
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          2  that's fine.

          3                 Again, as of October 25th, the agency

          4  relocated 36 case management staff who were out

          5  stationed in the commercial SRO hotel program,

          6  shifting them to the DASIS Intensive Housing

          7  Services Unit, as well as other field offices.

          8  Clients residing in those hotels have assigned case

          9  managers. In fact, each of these clients have

         10  already been assigned to center-based case managers

         11  who are field workers and make field visits to hotel

         12  populations on a scheduled and regularly monitored

         13  basis. These staff are based in an intensive

         14  services housing unit of the Waverly Office and are

         15  totally focused on the hotel population, their

         16  stabilization and their relocation into permanent

         17  housing.

         18                 It should also be noted that there

         19  has been a significant reduction over the last three

         20  years in the hotel population, from approximately

         21  1,850 to its current 909. We have been doing a

         22  better job of working with these clients to relocate

         23  them and permanent housing. Either in supportive

         24  housing programs or independent apartments.

         25                 Furthermore, we found that this was
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          2  merely solely as a result of the work of the

          3  center-based staff, had little to do with the state

          4  staff out stationed in the hotels.

          5                 So, we think this is a more effective

          6  way of serving the population, that is why the

          7  action was taken.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Is it correct

          9  that none of the folks involved lost their job?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         11  That's correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Is it correct

         13  that none of the folks involved lost their job?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         15  That's correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So there is no

         17  savings to the City in terms of less employees. So,

         18  if you have 36 workers who are stationed in the

         19  hotels, directly in contact with the client, in

         20  addition, as Council Member Eldridge repeatedly

         21  points out, in contact with about 1,800 or so, or

         22  1,200 or so other clients or SROs, although not

         23  DASIS clients, but just the same SROs, and they

         24  become a link to the communities and the residents

         25  of this City who live around SROs, who often have
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          2  quality of life concerns, and it doesn't make their

          3  job, just by definition any harder to help the 900

          4  or so folks if they are there, I mean you may argue

          5  it may not make it any harder in a central office,

          6  but we can certainly know it is not harder to do it

          7  on site. Then, again, your commentary begs the

          8  question, why do it? Other than just be disruptive?

          9  Give less service to the clients on-site, give them

         10  less help in navigating all the hurdles you put in

         11  their way, and give communities less, you know, take

         12  away a person that communities can turn to for

         13  quality of life issues.

         14                 I heard your words but you are not

         15  talking to the motivation, what is the gain?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: The

         17  Comptroller's office did a report, there were lots

         18  of problems related to having staff located in those

         19  locations, including the employees being involved

         20  and being charged with criminal activity, et cetera.

         21  So, we actually think if having people located, the

         22  homeless agency also had staff located there, we

         23  feel that it is more effective again not to have two

         24  case managers and we found that it was actually more

         25  effective in moving people to permanent housing and
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          2  reducing our reliance, which I think has been a

          3  general --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Commissioner,

          5  you just did this about a week -- excuse me,

          6  Commissioner, with all due respect, we can disagree

          7  and we obviously do, but you just made this move

          8  about, like three weeks ago, so to say that part of

          9  the reason is we found this more effective in

         10  getting people permanent housing by having them

         11  centrally located, unless a whole lot of folks got

         12  permanent housing in the last three weeks, that is

         13  absurd on its face.

         14                 And the second thing, for the record,

         15  most of those allegations are proven unfounded and

         16  it is unfair to cast that aspersion on those

         17  workers, those are old allegations, both of which

         18  were proven unfounded. In this Administration, is

         19  there any citizen in this City who believes that if

         20  there was that kind of wrong-doing, this

         21  Administration would not have taken legal action of

         22  any and every kind, since they are such a law

         23  enforcement-dominated Administration.

         24                 So, again, you want to do it, you

         25  have done it, but I still, and this is not the main
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          2  topic, still cannot wrap my hands around or

          3  understand the efficacy of the move and how it

          4  better serves those clients.

          5                 I understand that is your position,

          6  but I don't think you can prove your case, or even

          7  made an attempt to prove your case.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But it is

          9  also a very significant change in the City's policy.

         10                 First of all, SRO housing is not

         11  necessarily temporary housing. SRO housing has

         12  always been a source of permanent housing to a

         13  certain segment of the population. In the district I

         14  represent, it has been a very important segment of

         15  housing for the permanent population.

         16                 Also, some of these caseworkers, or

         17  all of these caseworkers were originally HRA

         18  caseworkers assigned to SRO hotels. When DASIS was

         19  created, the transfer of those caseworkers went from

         20  HRA to DASIS, which at a time we objected because

         21  they did serve people who were not 1,800 or 1,600

         22  clients at the time who were not DASIS clients.

         23                 In the district that I represent,

         24  they are mentally ill people, they are aged people

         25  and they need the services. We have people who are
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          2  90 years old living in SRO hotels who relied on

          3  those caseworkers, who even relied on the meals that

          4  they provided in some of those facilities who are

          5  not going to travel when they are 90 years old to

          6  see a caseworker some place else.

          7                 And so, what you have done is, you

          8  are eliminating by your moving this way and by your

          9  cutting down always every opportunity you have to

         10  reduce services to needed people in this City, you

         11  have now totally eliminated the SRO population, and

         12  they are permanent residents of SROs, whose

         13  permanency is threatened because we are not

         14  enforcing a lot of the protections for them, but

         15  they need that housing. You are not providing any

         16  alternative housing and you are not providing any

         17  alternative services. So, it is very distressing to

         18  some of us because it is something that you have

         19  very subtly and gradually eliminated.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: It goes

         21  beyond, in other words, just to DASIS, 900 DASIS

         22  clients that you referred to, and that was a dual

         23  benefit. This Administration should have been happy

         24  with that because we were getting more for less, you

         25  know, with less.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It was a

          3  commitment made by the same administration but a

          4  different HRA administration, that those workers

          5  would stay in those hotels, that was the commitment

          6  made to the communities when they accepted them and

          7  happily accepted these facilities.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So, you see,

          9  without proving the efficacy of your move, you have

         10  also created this additional damage, we submit to

         11  you, for your consideration.

         12                 Now, the final one, Scatter Site

         13  housing changes. But let me tell you, it is very

         14  distressing to have passed a local law that your

         15  agency, I mean DAS but you are in charge obviously,

         16  that your agency has ignored and has to be taken all

         17  the way to the Court of Appeals to enforce, in terms

         18  of EVR, it is very distressing to learn that you

         19  want to create tailor-made programs, you say for

         20  good reasons, we perhaps believe to force more

         21  people into workfare. It is very frustrating to see

         22  you move workers who, it doesn't save the City any

         23  money, they were doing more than their fair share

         24  for the client and the additional population the

         25  Council members spoke about, and became a link to
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          2  the communities for quality of life issues, without

          3  any documented evidence as to the efficacy of the

          4  move, and now, lastly, Scatter Site housing, a

          5  program that is cost effective and works from all

          6  accounts. It serves about 2,000 of the neediest New

          7  Yorkers, after all intents and purposes appears to

          8  be headed to destruction based on your changes. What

          9  is the basis for changing the program? What do you

         10  hope to accomplish? Why have you done it? Why are

         11  you abandoning these 2,000 people? Are you happy

         12  with the idea that they will lose their apartments

         13  and may end up on the streets, if not in the

         14  homeless shelter system? You are not saving money

         15  apparently? Let's talk about this final issue which

         16  is a major thrust of today's hearing. What exactly

         17  do you hope to accomplish? Why are you doing it, and

         18  actually you should outline first what you have

         19  done. Someone should outline exactly what you have

         20  done.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         22  Okay. We have done nothing. There has been no

         23  decision to change the current contractor of Scatter

         24  Site housing. There has been no change in the

         25  contract, so I think it is important that that fact
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          2  be, and as was indicated, there has been nothing in

          3  writing at all. There has been no change in any

          4  contract.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You mean of

          6  the existing contract?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          8  That's correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Well, let's

         10  separate them. Let's talk of those existing

         11  contracts. When do they run out?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: You

         13  can go ahead and answer.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: The

         15  contracts are usually on a three-year cycle and they

         16  have at least one or two renewals. So you may have,

         17  the City may have a contract with an organization

         18  for up to nine years.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: How many

         20  organizations currently, historically under

         21  contract? Let's not talk about the new ones, we will

         22  separate that.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:

         24  Currently under contract right now 27 in the

         25  Scattered Site Housing Program.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            150

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Serving

          3  involved in how many units? Is the 1,800 number

          4  generally about the right number?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Yes,

          6  that is a placement number, it is actually a little

          7  higher, the current number. The total contracted

          8  number of units is about 2,100.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         10                 So, for all of those providers who

         11  are currently under contract, are they allowed to

         12  keep the apartments in their name, or have they been

         13  directed to change it?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No,

         15  they have not been directed to change it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Are they being

         17  reimbursed at the same rate; in other words, does

         18  the $650 cap apply to them?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No,

         20  there is no change in their contracts.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Well, I want

         22  to just go through the elements.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         24  Okay, that's fine.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Because then
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          2  this is the record and it is helpful, if, in fact,

          3  something happens other than what you swear to

          4  today.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          6  Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I don't have

          8  any of the list, but for all other aspects of their

          9  contracts, do they remain in force and effect?

         10                 Whatever other elements they have.

         11  They have other elements of the contract --

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         13  There has been no change in the contract.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         15                 Now, are there a set of new providers

         16  of Scattered Site Housing?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         18  Yes. There was an RFP to increase, as we have been

         19  regularly increasing Scattered Site Housing in order

         20  to meet increased housing needs.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: How many new

         22  providers are there?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: I think

         24  about 14.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Do you have a
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          2  list of those new providers?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Yes, we

          4  can provide it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That is the

          6  sixth or seventh thing we need. We need a list of

          7  the new providers.

          8                 Now, for those new providers,

          9  somewhere between ten and 14, as we heard there were

         10  ten, for those new providers, were they given the

         11  exact same program and the exact same contract as

         12  the existing providers? Oh, never mind, we have the

         13  list. Thank you. You don't need to send it.

         14                 Were these new providers given the

         15  same contract, the same rules or was the program

         16  changed as it relates to these?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: First

         18  off, there is no contract in place with these new

         19  providers. They answered a request for proposal, and

         20  what the award is, is an award to negotiate.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, and are

         22  you negotiating a new program?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: We have

         24  sat down with the new providers and looked, as is

         25  described in the testimony, the impact of case law
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          2  related to continuity of leases, and we have talked

          3  about the impacts with them, and we have met with

          4  them at least three times and they are assisting the

          5  City in crafting a proposed model.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And is it your

          7  intention to change the existing model? Without

          8  qualitatively, just in general, to change the

          9  existing model?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: I think

         11  the intention is actually to respond to a changed

         12  environment.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. And in

         14  order to respond, do you anticipate changes to the

         15  existing model, whatever they may be?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You do?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:

         19  Whatever they may be, I don't think it is completely

         20  avoidable that there won't be some change.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So, now we are

         22  crawling but we are getting there. Among the changes

         23  you anticipate or contemplate or you feel may have

         24  to do in response to other legal action and legal

         25  positions, the things under consideration, do they
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          2  include but perhaps are not limited to, having the

          3  apartment in the client's name, not the

          4  organization's name? Is that under consideration? It

          5  is really a yes or no, despite the fact that the

          6  Government Affairs folks get nervous when you ever

          7  get near answering a meaningful question. It is sort

          8  of a yes or no. Is that under consideration?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: I think

         10  that first off, that will be an inevitable result of

         11  the changes --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So it is under

         13  consideration? Or it's done. That was already

         14  definite?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Well, I

         16  think there was information provided to us by the

         17  advocates, but, yes, in at least 38 apartments they

         18  lost the apartments to destabilization.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No, I am just

         20  asking you, you have a new set of providers coming

         21  up.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You are

         24  negotiating with them, the program will change; is

         25  one of the things under consideration or already
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          2  been decided, that apartments in -- that these

          3  people process will be in the client's name? It is

          4  really a yes or a no.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:

          6  Actually it is not really a yes or a no answer, but

          7  there may be a result of clients actually having

          8  leases in their own names, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: So, it is not

         10  to determine that that is the automatic and every

         11  case policy?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:

         13  Absolutely not.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: It is your

         15  belief that that may happen or may not happen in

         16  some cases; is that it?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: How I

         18  would respond to that is, in some cases it actually

         19  is a desirable goal for clients to have their names

         20  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I am not

         22  making value judgments. I am just trying to get the

         23  facts.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:-- On

         25  their leases.
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          2                 Secondly, in certain cases landlords

          3  may not want to rent except to an individually named

          4  person.

          5                 Thirdly, there are individuals that

          6  may never, ever be able to move to a situation of

          7  independent control over their apartments and we are

          8  not mandating --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Is it your

         10  testimony that it has not yet been determined

         11  whether these new providers will be required to

         12  place the apartments in each clients' name, that is

         13  your testimony?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And it is your

         16  sworn testimony that that is not as of today going

         17  to be a requirement of these contracts but it may

         18  happen in some cases?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And is it

         21  going to be up to the agency or up to you? How are

         22  you going to -- if it is not a mandatory for

         23  everyone, how do you contemplate setting this up?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Well,

         25  the process that we have discussed with the
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          2  proposers is that first off they do a full case

          3  assessment of all of their current clients.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: And

          6  assess their capacities in a move to independent

          7  housing and taking over a lease and taking over

          8  their management of their housing situation.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That is

         10  different. We are talking about the Scattered Site

         11  assisted housing.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:

         13  Actually that is what I am talking about. We have

         14  sat down in a series of meetings with these

         15  potential providers to discuss just exactly what is

         16  happening on their caseload, how their individual

         17  caseloads would fall out in terms of people capable

         18  of moving to their own lease, capable of moving to

         19  their own lease after intensive case management for

         20  some periods of time, and the number of the

         21  population that probably would not be able to move

         22  within the foreseeable future.

         23                 And that it was always anticipated

         24  that a portion of the portfolio that the individual

         25  contractor would have, would always have apartments
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          2  in their name that they would control and that they

          3  would facilitate movement of clients into.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, so it is

          5  your sworn testimony that the final program has not

          6  been mandated yet.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: That's

          8  correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That under

         10  consideration is for these new, the folks who won

         11  the RFP, under consideration is keeping units in the

         12  agency's name and/or some units in the clients'

         13  name, as opposed to mandating them all in the

         14  clients' name.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Right,

         16  that's correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: When will that

         18  final decision be made?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Well,

         20  theoretically the contracts are to begin January

         21  1st. We have at least one, probably two more

         22  meetings with the providers.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Do you also

         24  have a $650 rental cap in the new program?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:
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          2  Absolutely not. There is not rental cap. Every case

          3  is decided on a case-by-case financial assessment

          4  process, the policy is established and that is the

          5  policy that would be used.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: What does that

          7  mean?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: It

          9  means that the agency does not identify any specific

         10  caps. They evaluate every potential lead --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Does that

         12  mean that there are instances where you pay more

         13  than $650?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:

         15  Absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What is the

         17  highest rent you pay?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: I don't

         19  know off the top of my head, but we can actually

         20  provide that information to you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, what is

         22  your average, would you say?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Pardon

         24  me, sir?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What is your
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          2  average?

          3                 You don't know?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: We can

          5  provide it.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          7  Well, there is a report. There is a statistical

          8  report that comes out every month that has every

          9  unit and the varying amounts that are paid. So I

         10  suggest that we will be happy to give you a copy of

         11  the report.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:

         13  Actually I can give you some of the information now.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: This of course

         15  would be to the existing providers, so it has some

         16  value, but we were trying to talk about the new

         17  ones, but go ahead.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: The

         19  process would be the same.

         20                 There are two levels of rental

         21  assistance provided by the agency, one is called

         22  standard allowance, which is actually determined by

         23  the New York State Department of Social Services,

         24  which has a threshold of 480. Anything above $481

         25  obviously is determined on a case-by-case financial
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          2  assessment. And just some of the breakdown, in terms

          3  of the enhanced allowances, we have nearly 3,000

          4  cases that are receiving rental assistance at 650,

          5  over 1,000 at 834, nearly 1,000 at 1,200.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, so we

          7  have a sense of it. That's fine.

          8                 That is the existing population

          9  through the existing providers.

         10                 To return to the new providers, I

         11  count about 16 or 17 on this list, and again to

         12  review your testimony, your testimony is you are

         13  not, as of today, mandating every lease in the

         14  clients' name, you anticipate some will be in the

         15  clients' name, some will be in the providers' name.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You have not

         18  established a $650 cap.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:

         20  Absolutely not.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You have not,

         22  however, signed these contracts, so what you tell us

         23  may be true today or may or may not be true

         24  tomorrow, a week from now or by January 1 when you

         25  sign the contracts. I don't mean to imply anything
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          2  negative, in other words, you don't know what the

          3  final -- this is what you anticipate happening?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Yes,

          5  and I am pretty confident of it, and it is actually

          6  being discussed programmatically with the new

          7  providers.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And the third

          9  issue was, if a provider moves a certain number of

         10  Scattered Site clients out of the system within six

         11  to eight months, is it true that you are

         12  contemplating giving them an incentive bonus of five

         13  percent of the contract amount?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: As per

         15  our ACCO's office --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: As per what?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: As per

         18  our Agency Chief Contracting Officer's office and

         19  instruction to the agency, all contracts within the

         20  City are going to be moving to a performance-based.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I just wanted,

         22  this is a Human Services contract, I just want an

         23  answer. Are you going to give --

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Well,

         25  this is going to be moving to a performance-based
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          2  contract, as well.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Fine.

          4                 Are you going to give them a five

          5  percent bonus if they move people out faster? It's a

          6  very simple question.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:

          8  Absolutely not.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: What are you

         10  going to do?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Every

         12  performance-based contract has a built-in system of

         13  incentives and sanctions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Which means

         15  what?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: The

         17  incentives in this case, what is being discussed, is

         18  actually relating to placement of homeless

         19  individuals, not movement out of the program.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: What does that

         21  mean exactly?

         22                 If I have a contract and I am going

         23  to have 20 units of housing, I thought the 20 units

         24  had to be in the clients' name, no one would pay

         25  more than 650, and if I moved them from the
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          2  supportive houses to somewhere else within six to

          3  eight months you would give me a bonus. That is what

          4  I thought.

          5                 Now, you tell me, you know,

          6  hypothetically let's say that is what I thought. Now

          7  you tell me, no. You will have your 20 units, some

          8  may be in the provider name, some may be in the

          9  clients' name, you are telling me there is not a

         10  $650 limit, and you are telling me if I take any or

         11  all of those folks who occupy the 20 units and move

         12  them out on their own, independently within six to

         13  eight months that I don't get a bonus?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: The

         15  bonus relates to how many homeless individuals you

         16  actually placed.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Placed where,

         18  in those 20 units?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Placed

         20  in apartments, yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No, no. You

         22  are telling me I get a contract dealing with 20

         23  units of Scatter Site houses, and I get a bonus for

         24  performing my contract and putting the people into

         25  those units? That doesn't make any sense.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL:

          3  Actually, in some cases the contractors aren't able

          4  to meet their targets, and those that do under

          5  specific, you know, difficult circumstances, should

          6  be rewarded.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, I just

          8  want to know it. You are telling me I get a contract

          9  with the City to fill 20 units of housing, whether

         10  in the clients' name or my providers' name, and if I

         11  do it, for every one I put in a unit, I not only get

         12  paid, I get a bonus?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: What is

         14  under discussion with the new providers is

         15  revisiting that 20 units, the focus moves from

         16  maintaining a unit in all cases to also including

         17  placement of homeless individuals in their own

         18  apartments --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: It may

         21  not be 20 --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Mr. Caldwell,

         23  do you know what, really, you know, I don't know

         24  what you have to hide, why --

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: I don't

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            166

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  have anything to hide.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And why you

          4  are trying to evade the answer.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: I am

          6  not evading.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: Let

          8  me try.

          9                 The performance, because our past

         10  experience has been we need a lot more housing than

         11  we now have, that's supportive housing --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: And

         14  frequently when we contract with a community agency,

         15  we are saying we would like you to place 20 people

         16  or 50 people who need housing, who now don't have

         17  it, that is the objective, and it is through a

         18  combination of placing people in both individual

         19  units under their own, or again, ones that they have

         20  under contract. And frequently what is happening in

         21  the past is even though we had that contract with

         22  that number, they actually were not able to secure

         23  that number and so we served fewer people. And our

         24  objective here is to --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Why weren't
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          2  they able to fill them? Was it perhaps the rent

          3  levels of the apartments? Do you know why?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: It

          5  is a variety of reasons why I am sure that they

          6  could testify. But all this is is --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But you decided

          8  --

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: But

         10  all this is, is an incentive to deliver on your

         11  contract.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Clearly but --

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         14  That is what this is trying to make sure, is that we

         15  actually are successful in this city over in fact

         16  actually fully bringing up the additional units that

         17  we have both agreed to.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Let me ask you

         19  something.

         20                 Two contractors here on the list are

         21  supposed to have 20 units. If one consistently

         22  filled 17 units, and the other fills 20, that is

         23  what they get a bonus for, for fulfilling their

         24  contract?

         25                 Or after they put the 17 people in
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          2  and the other puts the 20 and then they move some of

          3  them out to their own, is that what they get the

          4  bonus for?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          6  They get the bonus for bringing up the units that

          7  they had told us they can find for people and help

          8  people get placed in them. That is what the bonus is

          9  for.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That doesn't

         11  even make logical sense.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         13  Well, I am sorry. In the past frequently they were

         14  not able to deliver on the number of units that they

         15  thought they could find and locate and contract for.

         16  That's all.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay, if they

         18  allowed up to 20, and they filled the 20, that is

         19  what they get a bonus for?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         21  Whereas if they only fill ten, what that means is we

         22  tied up that much money and we tied it up with

         23  somebody who couldn't deliver, and the objective is

         24  otherwise to give it to somebody who can.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And your
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          2  testimony is somehow, or directly, that the bonus is

          3  not for bringing the person in to the Scattered Site

          4  assisted housing circumstance, and some fixed period

          5  of time, six to eight months, then moving them out

          6  to independent living, that is not what they get the

          7  bonus for?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay. I would

         10  like to see a copy, because obviously it is not

         11  locked in yet, into the contract, that we would like

         12  to see that document that explains that. Because it

         13  has been explained to members of this Committee and

         14  staff that this is assisted living, I don't know if

         15  that is the right word to use -- supportive housing,

         16  sorry -- and there are the 20 folks in this

         17  supportive unit being provided with services and the

         18  like by the advocates who testified before. There

         19  may come a point in time under the current system

         20  when they are able to then move out to another

         21  housing option on their own. So that takes a long

         22  time, it may take years for all I know, and it

         23  appears to be to us that you are going to pay a

         24  bonus to those providers who take people into the

         25  supportive housing and then get them out of that
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          2  supportive housing in six to eight months to live on

          3  their own. Not that that is necessarily a bad thing,

          4  if they truly could live on their own. But the fear

          5  that has been raised is, they will be under pressure

          6  to move them out, they won't be able to handle it,

          7  they will end up on the street or back at the

          8  beginning. Which fits into your pattern, the

          9  Administration's pattern of turning in this entire

         10  area of social services, which is what I believe you

         11  are dedicated to.

         12                 So, you are absolutely clear now --

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         14  Yes, we are absolutely clear.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: That that is

         16  not what you are paying a bonus for.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: We

         18  are delivering on bringing up more housing because

         19  we need more housing. That is why we are sending out

         20  an RFP.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: All right, and

         22  you are testifying that -- this is really wasteful,

         23  I think. You are going to pay providers a bonus

         24  fulfilling the 20 slots that you gave them a

         25  contract to fill?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No.

          3  No.

          4                 Again, we frequently have people say

          5  they can deliver a service. I tell you I can go find

          6  this many housing units, okay?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. For

          8  supportive housing.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: For

         10  supportive housing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: All right. I

         12  tell you 20, these here --

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: And

         14  I don't have them already necessarily --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: I

         17  am going to go try to locate those and negotiate

         18  those.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right. And if

         20  I get all 20 that I promised you, I get a bonus?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No,

         22  you actually then, and people who don't have the

         23  housing, if you can successfully place them and get

         24  them placed, then obviously we want to make sure --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Placed where?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: In

          3  the housing which we both agree; i.e., a combination

          4  of individual rents and where they are under

          5  corporate contract.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No, no. Sir, I

          7  am trying to ask you whether they -- you are telling

          8  me they don't get a bonus for taking people into

          9  supportive housing and some day getting them out on

         10  their own. I don't believe you, but that is what you

         11  are telling me.

         12                 You are now telling me they do get a

         13  contract for simply filling the supportive housing

         14  units that they promised you they would fill?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: We

         16  are obviously not able to communicate.

         17                 What I am telling you is that you

         18  make a commitment that you can go out and find so

         19  many apartments, you then can case manage people

         20  successfully and locate them into that housing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         23  Sometimes you can't find that many units and you

         24  don't successfully move that many people

         25  successfully. So we tied up money unnecessarily and
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          2  we didn't give it to somebody who could actually

          3  locate the housing. That's all.

          4                 But we are more than happy to share

          5  with you the material you asked for so we can

          6  communicate as to what the incentives are.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I don't know

          8  what you are trying to say. I don't know if you are

          9  consciously or purposely trying to obfuscate, or it

         10  is the way you communicate. But the simple question:

         11  Each of these providers have a goal of 20 units, or

         12  40 some of them have, of supportive housing. If they

         13  place 20 people in the supportive housing, whether

         14  it be six months, eight months, a year, that is what

         15  they get a bonus for?

         16                 Or you are telling me that once they

         17  get them out of supportive housing onto their own?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: We

         19  will be happy to supply you the material explaining

         20  any incentives, all right?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Well, I am

         22  just trying to get an answer to the question.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: I

         24  think I have tried to tell you what the thought is

         25  right now. There is no finalization. We accept your
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          2  input in terms of how you feel, whether it is

          3  worthwhile to construct any incentive around

          4  actually being able to deliver on the number of

          5  units you commit. But that is fine. We appreciate

          6  your input, we haven't finalized anything.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I just want an

          8  answer to the question and then I will turn it over

          9  to my colleagues who have some questions.

         10                 What is the basis of getting the

         11  incentive? This bonus?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: To

         13  actually place 20 people in the housing.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: In the

         15  supportive housing.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         17  Correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And if the

         19  basis is not after a period of time getting them out

         20  of the supportive housing into some other

         21  independent living?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No,

         23  there hasn't been any incentive designed that way.

         24  That isn't the intent.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.
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          2                 Council Member Quinn has a couple of

          3  questions and then we will finish.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          5  Okay, because the staff have to leave because they

          6  are going to a conference.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: We should be

          8  done in six minutes.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         10  Okay, fine. I am just trying to -- we let you know

         11  before, I didn't really want to raise it up front.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No problem.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         14  Okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, it sounds

         16  to me like if we were talking about garbage people,

         17  we would be saying that for some reason, my route, I

         18  had 20 homes, but every day I couldn't finish that

         19  route, I only was able to pick up 11 barrels of

         20  garbage. So now, to make sure I pick up all of the

         21  barrels of garbage and take them to the dump, you

         22  are going to just pay me more money, if I do my job,

         23  and you are going to just pay me my salary if I

         24  don't finish my route every day.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: I
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          2  appreciate your comments. We will take them into

          3  consideration, the contracts aren't finalized.

          4                 I understand that you feel that

          5  whether you actually deliver --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, you don't

          7  know what I feel. You have no idea what I feel. I

          8  just asked a question, you have no idea what I feel,

          9  and you don't want to know what I feel, so just

         10  answer my question, but don't tell me what I feel.

         11                 So, you are not going to answer that

         12  question.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: I

         14  thought it was the same question. It is the same

         15  question that you had asked earlier or not?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, if you

         17  listen you will hear what question it is.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: All

         19  right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Earlier you

         21  said you came up with an incentive, you know, to try

         22  to get people there to do their 20. Now, to me it

         23  sounds like the incentive is money, which one could

         24  derive from that, well, you know, if we give them

         25  more money they will do more, as if there wasn't a
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          2  reason beyond their control that they hadn't met the

          3  20.

          4                 Now, as I understand it, as I

          5  understand it one of the main reasons that there has

          6  been trouble filling the units is because scattered

          7  site reimbursement is expense based. You can't bill

          8  DASIS until you incur the expense, and providers are

          9  having trouble finding apartments within the rent

         10  range that we talked about.

         11                 So, I appreciate the intent of

         12  getting the 20 units filled, but your incentive

         13  seems not to be based on an analysis as to why the

         14  20 units haven't been filled, it seems just to be

         15  throwing money at agencies, when you don't know that

         16  not getting paid enough was why they didn't meet the

         17  20.

         18                 So, based on that interpretation,

         19  what analysis did you do and what meetings did you

         20  hold with landlords, with clients, and with

         21  Scattered Site providers who were making and not

         22  making their 20, as the Chair said, making and not

         23  making their 20 to determine that a bonus, as you

         24  say was just to move people into the units is the

         25  right way to go, you know, assuming for a second
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          2  that that is what is going on as opposed to this

          3  independent thing.

          4                 So, how did you come to the

          5  determination that that was what was needed and that

          6  it wasn't something else?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          8  Well, I will read the testimony, since it outlines

          9  the date of the meetings and so on.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: All right. What

         11  page?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: On

         13  page five. Regarding the Scattered Site supportive

         14  housing program.

         15                 "Recent Appellate Court

         16  interpretations of the State of New York Rent

         17  Regulation laws have limited renewal leases for

         18  corporate institutional tenants under rent

         19  stabilization.

         20                 There is no entitlement to a renewal

         21  lease unless the lease provides for occupancy by a

         22  named individual and that person actually resides in

         23  the apartment and utilizes that apartment as a

         24  primary residence.

         25                 Consequently, such a narrow
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          2  application of the rent stabilization laws has many

          3  implications, which are of concern to any

          4  organization, whether governmental or

          5  community-based that provides housing and supportive

          6  services to individuals and families.

          7                 Four substantive meetings have been

          8  held with community-based organizations and their

          9  representatives for persons with HIV and AIDS,

         10  specifically December '98, May '99, August '99 and

         11  October '99.

         12                 Further, on August 10th, '99, a town

         13  meeting with DASIS and over 30 community-based

         14  organizations was held at the glass factory, one of

         15  the DASIS newly open contracted congregate

         16  facilities. At all of these meetings, participants

         17  had an opportunity to present their issues and

         18  concerns.

         19                 Several issues were presented,

         20  discussed and incorporated into the City's

         21  strategies.

         22                 Additionally, in May of '99, at the

         23  request of DASIS, advocates conducted a rent

         24  stabilization survey of scattered site contracts to

         25  determine the level of exposure result from the
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          2  recent court decision regarding non-for-profit and

          3  rent stabilized apartments.

          4                 Based on this survey it was

          5  determined 323 apartments in four boroughs were at

          6  risk of being destabilized, and 38 apartments had

          7  already been lost due to destabilization.

          8                 It is important to note that this

          9  survey was based on the experience of only four

         10  contractors from a pool of 27 across 2,100

         11  apartments, clearly the implications are real.

         12                 Consequently, based on this

         13  information, other factors such as continuing

         14  homeless populations, needs for housing, improved

         15  medical treatments and increased longevity of

         16  persons with HIV/AIDS, the appropriateness of

         17  encouraging independence for clients who no longer

         18  require supportive housing, the City sought more

         19  flexible and dynamic models.

         20                 The model under consideration we have

         21  talked about is to combine the two approaches, and

         22  that is what our intent is and that is what we have

         23  been talking about.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you, but

         25  where does that reference -- well, one, thank you.
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          2                 Two, I would be interested in seeing

          3  the minutes from all of those meetings, and the

          4  attendance sheets from all of those meetings.

          5                 Three, you didn't address the bonus

          6  and the decision that this was the best incentive

          7  what's determined. Could you expand on that

          8  specifically?

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         10  Again, I have responded before --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I wanted to

         12  know all about the type and what it was for. The

         13  Council member just wants to know what led you to

         14  conclude a bonus is valuable to getting people, even

         15  if it is as you say to fill their units, as opposed

         16  to paying higher rents, given we live in the City of

         17  New York, as opposed to some other option. What was

         18  the basis of determining a bonus would be helping

         19  the cause.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: In

         21  performance contracting, one of the points behind

         22  performance contracts, is that you want to get

         23  providers who are able to deal with the issues

         24  presented and accomplish the outcome. The outcome in

         25  this case is to secure the needed housing and to
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          2  help individuals into that new and additional

          3  housing. And so that is basically why this incentive

          4  was designed, is to say that if you can deliver and

          5  achieve those outcomes, then we should pay you an

          6  enhanced payment.

          7                 I understand your input, again it is

          8  an open thing, we can take your views into

          9  consideration.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I appreciate

         11  that.

         12                 If you have a contract to build a

         13  park by January 1st and you finish early you get an

         14  incentive. In other words, if you have a contract to

         15  build a park, you don't get an incentive for

         16  actually building the park. So, if you have a

         17  contract to house 20, to create 20 units of

         18  supportive housing, it is hard to believe -- I am

         19  not telling you better or worse, it is hard to

         20  believe you want to give an incentive to people to

         21  actually do that, as if that is if someone couldn't

         22  do it. People are desperate for the housing, there

         23  is a long list, it is not like you are searching for

         24  clients. People are desperate for the housing, you

         25  know, that's clear. The providers certainly are in
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          2  the business of doing supportive housing, that is

          3  clear. They have got a contract to do it, so it is

          4  hard to even fathom why the idea is let's pay them

          5  if they actually do it, you said do it early, do it

          6  late.

          7                 So, not that we are trying to argue

          8  that we have a better way, we are trying to say to

          9  you, it is so hard to accept, understand, to believe

         10  that it gives credence to the notion that what you

         11  are really going to end up giving bonuses for is not

         12  getting the people into the 20 units, but getting

         13  them out, and that is the fear.

         14                 But it is just -- because the first,

         15  not the latter, you say the latter is not the case,

         16  the first doesn't make a heck of a lot of sense.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         18  Well, some people build a park on time, some people

         19  don't. We would like them to bring the housing in on

         20  time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: And

         23  if you say, well, that doesn't make any sense to you

         24  to pay for somebody to bring it in and others who

         25  don't, to also get paid the same amount --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No, you paid

          3  for it already in the contract.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: --

          5  What's the difference? No, there is incentives and

          6  disincentives whether you deliver the park on time

          7  by the date or not.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         10  That's all. It's the same concept here.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: No, it's not

         12  the same concept.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: If

         14  you deliver the housing on time to the people, then

         15  we think it makes sense to give a bonus. If you

         16  don't, and you only get ten units, then we think it

         17  probably means that we didn't achieve the help that

         18  we really wanted to provide the community and

         19  individuals, which was to get 20 people, as we say

         20  we have more than 20 people who need help.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         23  That's all. It is simple and straightforward.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I don't see

         25  the analogy as the same, just to close, number one.
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          2                 And number two, I still think the

          3  Council member asked the question why do people not

          4  find the 20 units for this enormous need. And if it

          5  is because they didn't get paid enough in their

          6  contract, I think that is the wrong implication, if

          7  it is because it is difficult to find affordable,

          8  safe, convenient, you know medically appropriate

          9  housing that you can use in supportive housing for

         10  this population, then I am not so sure what paying

         11  them more does. So that is the essence of the

         12  combined question.

         13                 In any event, Council Member Watkins

         14  has the final found, final questions, and we will

         15  wrap up this hearing.

         16                 It is of great concern to this

         17  Committee that the Division of AIDS Services and

         18  Income Support, under the direction of HRA, in at

         19  least three or four areas, is continuing what

         20  appears to be a pattern of providing less benefits

         21  to those in need, of creating hurdles, or ignoring

         22  the law that try to eliminate hurdles in several

         23  areas, and that is why we continue these oversight

         24  hearings.

         25                 Council Member Watkins.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Commissioner,

          3  let me understand, that you are telling us, if I

          4  understand you correctly, that the reason for the

          5  change in lease and in whose name the lease is, has

          6  to do with the rent stabilization refusal or, I

          7  don't know that they refuse, but they do not have to

          8  renew a lease in the name of an organization; is

          9  that what you are saying?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         11  Yes, and this is court case law, that's correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Have you had

         13  any refusals thus far?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         15  Yes, there have been some that they have refused,

         16  the community groups have shared that with us and it

         17  is part of the testimony. They have lost some of the

         18  apartments because the landlord refused to renew

         19  them to the corporation, yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: So, in those

         21  cases then you have resorted to having the apartment

         22  in the name of the individual; is that correct?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         24  That is hopefully what was accomplished so that we

         25  could retain the apartment and the person wouldn't
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          2  have to move, that's correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, when

          4  you say hopefully you are not sure.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No,

          6  because I mean if the landlord changed because it

          7  wasn't rent stabilized, you know, I am saying, yes,

          8  that is what both the community group and we tried

          9  to achieve. It isn't always achievable, because a

         10  landlord may exercise their rights to raise the rent

         11  and so on. That is all I am trying to share with

         12  you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, one of

         14  the things that will be helpful to us would be to

         15  have you send us what the determinations were

         16  eventually in those cases where a lease was not

         17  renewed because it was in the name of a community

         18  organization, we would like to know then what was

         19  done for the client? Were they housed in some other

         20  situation where a landlord would accept a lease in

         21  an organization say, or did the lease have to be

         22  transferred into the client's name? And in those

         23  cases, how did the client manage? Who managed that

         24  first and last month's rent? Or the -- I forgot what

         25  you call that -- the security deposit.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          3  Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: That would be

          5  of great interest to us.

          6                 Also, I am sure that I am not the

          7  only member of this Committee that is still very

          8  uncomfortable with the possibility, you tell us it

          9  is not a reality, but the possibility of a rent cap

         10  hanging over these clients.

         11                 I listened to the testimony and I

         12  heard that the state said something about $480, was

         13  I mistaken?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: No,

         15  that is the New York State enhanced rent allowance,

         16  the standard rent allowance, for single individuals.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Including New

         18  York City?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Yes, it

         20  is statewide. It is established by the state.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, then it

         22  certainly sounds like if we haven't already, we need

         23  to do something very substantial in order to make a

         24  change or to have some of these state people come

         25  down and try to find one of these apartments where
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          2  they end up living in a cereal box at $480.

          3                 I think that part of the problem that

          4  I am hearing is that there may be problems that your

          5  agency is facing that may have originated elsewhere,

          6  but I am troubled by what appears to be a passive

          7  reaction to these problems, rather than a very

          8  active offense and aggressive action in order to do

          9  problem solving.

         10                 We cannot abide by a state directive

         11  for New York City that says $480. Can't abide by it.

         12  So, we would like also to have some suggestions from

         13  you as to what we do as a Council, as to what the

         14  organization and agencies can do in order to battle

         15  this.

         16                 This is an area where a problem is

         17  created from somewhere else, we cannot roll over

         18  while people are being forced out of their

         19  residences because of somebody else's tunnelvision.

         20                 So, we need leadership from your

         21  agency in order to give us some guidelines as to

         22  what you need in order to do your job effectively

         23  within New York City.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Could I

         25  briefly respond to this?
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          2                 The accommodation, the response that

          3  the City has done over the past several years to

          4  this actual threshold, is the rental assistance

          5  program, the case-by-case financial assessment, that

          6  actually we have only about a little less than 3,000

          7  that are in the 480 and below, and actually over

          8  12,000 that are in 480 and above, and that is

          9  probably about two-thirds of our caseload. That is a

         10  significant effort being put forward to work within

         11  a very confining New York State threshold.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Let me ask

         13  you this: For the 480, the state gives money based

         14  on the 480, correct?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CALDWELL: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Well, I

         17  commend the City for what it has done thus far, but

         18  what I am saying is that New York City has more

         19  problems than the rest of the state. We not only

         20  have higher rentals, a lower vacancy, but we also

         21  have more of the HIV/AIDS cases than the rest of the

         22  state. And what I am saying is we cannot afford to

         23  let the state say we are only giving you 480 and we

         24  make up the rest with tax levy funds. And with all

         25  due respect there were times when this Council has
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          2  to add money to the budget that is proposed to us at

          3  budget time. We happen to be having some better days

          4  right now, Wall Street is not going to continue the

          5  way it is forever. What do we do when the City's

          6  dollars are short? We need now to say to the State

          7  we have a bigger problem, we have a bigger

          8  percentage of the people who need the help and we

          9  cannot house them at 480. Making up the shortfall is

         10  commendable, but it is not a long-range answer to an

         11  ever-increasing problem.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Well, we have

         13  some area of agreement, the state housing allotment

         14  is not enough. I see the nodds of appreciation for

         15  the Council Member's comments, but she is suggesting

         16  that we try to help, you guys should try to resist

         17  as well.

         18                 Council Member Perkins to finish.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         20                 Let me just first, Mr. Chairman,

         21  commend you for the leadership you are providing on

         22  this particular issue, and the patience that you

         23  have exhibited this afternoon in your efforts to get

         24  some clarification about their policy and which

         25  seems to me to be humungous efforts on their part
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          2  not to be as forthcoming, as straightforward and as

          3  simple and clear as possible. Exactly why that may

          4  be the case, I don't know. I almost feel like I know

          5  less now than I did before this got started and

          6  everything is totally at variance to what we have

          7  been finding out prior to this hearing and since

          8  this hearing when some of the others made their

          9  presentation.

         10                 So, I want to express my appreciation

         11  to you, Chairman DiBrienza, for your efforts in that

         12  regard.

         13                 Let me ask you, do you know what this

         14  here T-shirt is about? Are you familiar with this

         15  T-shirt? Can you read what it says, sir?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         17  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Can you read

         19  what it says?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         21  Sure."The AIDS Crisis Isn't Over", and we agree. We

         22  very much agree.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: "Until it is

         24  over for everyone."

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:
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          2  That's correct. And I agree totally.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You agree

          4  totally.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: And

          6  we are increasing services, housing, cases

          7  management and other services.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, I just

          9  wanted to make sure --

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: To

         11  address that and improving the programs, and we

         12  think that is important.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The reason I

         14  am raising it is that there is a concern that

         15  triggered this type of message, and to some extent

         16  that concern stems from the policies and practices

         17  that your agency has been implementing with regard,

         18  particularly to AIDS victims of the African-American

         19  Latino community and especially women as well.

         20                 Are you familiar with that?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: I

         22  am not aware of what you are referencing --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Does it

         24  concern you that people of color that don't have the

         25  appropriate amount of faith in what you are doing,
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          2  to the extent that they are concerned that there is

          3  a tinge of racism in the manner in which your

          4  policies and practices are being implemented; does

          5  that concern you at all?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          7  Very much.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Are you aware

          9  of that concern that they have? Obviously to some

         10  extent because you read the T-shirt.

         11                 Are you aware of that concern?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         13  Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You are,

         15  okay.

         16                 What measures are you taking to

         17  relieve folks of those concerns?

         18                 I mean, people think that you are

         19  changing policies to their disadvantage because they

         20  are black or Latino or female, then it would seem to

         21  me you would be alarmed by that and you would be

         22  taking some positive proactive efforts to address

         23  that. What are you doing?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: We

         25  are developing increased housing, increased
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          2  programs, including in those areas of the City who

          3  have not had the scope of those programs because of

          4  new caseload coming in. And I think it is important

          5  and I want to tell you that I am very concerned

          6  about addressing that need and having community

          7  dialogue.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Are you

          9  reaching out, for instance to those groups that

         10  represent those clienteles, are you reaching

         11  specifically out to them to incorporate them into

         12  your work?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         14  Yes, and if you have other ideas that you think we

         15  can pursue, I will be happy to receive that and take

         16  action on that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Fine. Let me

         18  just ask you one final question, Mr. Chairman,

         19  particularly related to the Scatter Site proposal

         20  that we have been talking about, because I am not

         21  clear and to some extent where does it come from.

         22                 Now, right now if I am a provider,

         23  and contract with a landlord, with you, to provide

         24  20 units, I get a bonus if I provide those 20 units?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No.
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          2  We don't, and haven't finalized the contract.

          3                 One of the suggestions in the

          4  performance, again, you have given me your feedback

          5  on that particular way of addressing the performance

          6  contract, so I accept the input. We will have to

          7  make a decision as to, you know, whether we can

          8  construct the incentives appropriately with the

          9  providers.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         11                 The alternative proposal that creates

         12  a great deal of concern is that if I am the agency,

         13  you know, and I have a contract with you, if I

         14  provide 20 units, sort of like I get a bonus to

         15  individualize the lease, as opposed to having a

         16  corporate lease. I get a bonus for individualizing

         17  leases with the landlord.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: No. All

         20  right, so there is no bonus.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         22  There is a miscommunication --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, let's

         24  be clear.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: And
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          2  that is what I think is helpful in terms of our

          3  having a dialogue.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: No bonuses

          5  for the corporate leases, and there are no bonuses

          6  for the individual tenant leases.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

          8  There are no bonuses yet. We are talking about the

          9  current contract negotiating, but we haven't in

         10  those discussions talked about giving a bonus in the

         11  form --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Before I

         13  stepped out I thought I heard you say to the

         14  Chairman that you were giving corporate, as well as

         15  individualized leases, that is why I wanted to make

         16  sure.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         18  Yes, we are.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You are

         20  giving bonuses?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No,

         22  no, no. We haven't finalized the contract. We have

         23  been discussing in the current negotiation building

         24  in some performance aspects of the payment.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, the six
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          2  to eight-month issue that says if the client, if the

          3  consumer is removed from your program or somehow or

          4  other evolves from your program within a six- to

          5  eight-month period, there is no bonus for that

          6  either?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: No,

          8  again, there are no bonuses at all, Councilman.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just want

         10  to make sure I am clear about that.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         12  What we are doing is looking at right now

         13  negotiating performance contract, it has not been in

         14  the form the bonuses have been to get people and

         15  secure successfully housing for them.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The last

         17  question, I had a meeting with some of those who I

         18  guess, for lack of a better term, won the recent

         19  request for proposal that you are negotiating with,

         20  and in the discussions they expressed a great deal

         21  of concern about the so-called individualized

         22  approach. In fact, they were opposed, basically

         23  unanimously, at least those that attended; are you

         24  aware of that?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: I
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          2  am aware of the input I heard today and of course

          3  you're sharing with me the results of your meeting.

          4                 I think that there has been, you

          5  know, miscommunication, because I think there was an

          6  idea that we were going to phase out the existing,

          7  and I think hopefully we have clarified that that

          8  isn't the intent.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, if

         10  everybody said the individualized approach is bad,

         11  consumers say it is bad and the agencies that

         12  represent them say it is bad, we can assume that

         13  that is not going to happen?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         15  Again, we will take the input of the consumers and

         16  the agencies.

         17                 I think that actually as many of them

         18  indicated a continuity of types is probably

         19  appropriate as is in Boston and throughout the

         20  country and it is how that is administered, and so

         21  you know, again, I think getting input both before

         22  and here is useful in finalizing these contracts.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         24  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You are
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          2  welcome.

          3                 Commissioner, let's just be clear. I

          4  think the testimony up until now was that New York,

          5  and its housing market is unique, and that what

          6  works other places, that is what I got out of the

          7  sum and substance of the testimony, may not work

          8  here, number one.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         10  Uh-huh.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: What else I

         12  got out of the testimony of that entire panel was

         13  the program as is is better than the program you are

         14  contemplating.

         15                 What I got out of it was the idea

         16  that unfortunately rent stabilization protection may

         17  no longer, because that court case extend to

         18  departments in the provider names, is not reason in

         19  and of itself to change the entire program, although

         20  we would love to have rent protections for those

         21  departments, and that it is of little comfort for

         22  you to say -- it's okay, I accept the part that

         23  nothing is finalized yet, that is easy to accept,

         24  the contracts are due in January. It is of little

         25  comfort to say we are considering bonuses or getting
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          2  people into housing without simply and clearly

          3  saying the bonus is contemplated for getting them

          4  into the supportive housing that they are contracted

          5  for or the dividing line, the bonuses, for getting

          6  them out on their own; or keeping it gray by saying

          7  if you have 20 units and you put some in their name,

          8  which effectively makes it on their own, that is

          9  what you will get a bonus for and there is a

         10  prejudice for that versus in the agency's name -

         11  those details are what are troubling.

         12                 I would be not afraid to predict

         13  that, in fact when we see the final contract, that

         14  it wouldn't surprise me if you mandate leases in the

         15  name of the client, not the provider, it wouldn't

         16  surprise me if you end up with a $650 cap, it

         17  wouldn't surprise me if the bonus evolves to be for

         18  moving people through your program, out into

         19  independent living. Not that that is a bad thing, if

         20  they can handle it, but if they are rushed to do it

         21  to get the bonus, it would well backfire.

         22                 So, I wish you could have not just

         23  said what you said and taken our input, but have

         24  been a little bit more definitive, because all of

         25  the worries I think are still on the table, because
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          2  your testimony did not clearly rule them out, with

          3  one exception, as I did with the other issues about

          4  DASIS not going to work and all of that.

          5                 You did clearly state that the

          6  existing providers, 27 or so, accounting for about

          7  1,800 units or so, are not being ordered or directed

          8  to change their programs; is that correct? I just

          9  want to make that clear one more time.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER:

         11  That's correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: At least

         13  presumably you can only say at least until their

         14  contracts are up and whether the, you know, by that

         15  point there is a whole new look to the program, and

         16  they make decisions whether to stay in it or not, I

         17  guess you can't necessarily predict; is that

         18  correct?

         19                 You couldn't guarantee that you renew

         20  it as is if the program changes?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER HOOVER: I

         22  think what we are saying is that it is appropriate

         23  to have a combination of individual, which we have

         24  now, a lot of them, and the current corporate

         25  contracts, and we don't see a time when probably
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          2  both are not needed, and what we need to work out is

          3  what kind of combination do we need based upon

          4  people's ability to manage partially at least or

          5  fully their own affairs. And we will do that as part

          6  of the contract negotiation process.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: And again, I

          8  don't know that providers are saying that if the

          9  only issue were whose name the lease was in, they

         10  would have as much problem as if there weren't a lot

         11  more issues on the table which are rental caps,

         12  incentives for moving them out of the program

         13  completely and the other issues we raised. So, it is

         14  convenient maybe to keep getting back to the idea

         15  that some will be in the corporate name and some

         16  will be in the individual name, if that were the

         17  only issue the hearing would have been over probably

         18  45 minutes ago.

         19                 So, I think it is a lot more

         20  complicated than that. I think the fears are still

         21  not settled, so you accomplished taking our input

         22  maybe, but you didn't accomplish I think settling

         23  the fears that providers, advocates and clients

         24  have.

         25                 That being said, on a hopeful note,
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          2  it is good to hear in sworn testimony that DASIS

          3  clients after being deemed eligible will no longer

          4  be put through EVR. It is good to hear that in fact

          5  these issues on Scatter Site are not finished yet

          6  and you will provide information. It is very

          7  troubling I believe to hear a lack of justification

          8  of removing the on-site social service workers from

          9  SROs, and it is even more troubling to think that

         10  you want to set up bureaucratic response, HASA, to

         11  the general population folks who happen to be HIV

         12  positive, either to get them into workfare or

         13  because they are already in workfare and the

         14  justification for that blind allegiance to workfare

         15  is the notion that it is a tailor-made program and

         16  that we can be happy about it.

         17                 Since they are not mandated, since we

         18  far exceeded our work requirement participation

         19  rates, since it is a product of your Administration

         20  that requires the 100 percent, and since you cannot

         21  document that it leads significant numbers of people

         22  to jobs and self-sufficiency, I would argue, HRA,

         23  not DASIS but HRA would be better off -- well, in

         24  combination with DASIS, exempting those, even -- if

         25  they are HIV positive in the general population,
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          2  because it wouldn't affect our numbers very well,

          3  although you would never be able to have them fail

          4  the program and sanction them off if you exempt

          5  them, which is I think your true motivation. And

          6  more importantly, if HRA, not DASIS, would spend

          7  more time in job creation strategies, including

          8  transitional job creation strategies which are

          9  happening in cities and states across this country,

         10  which is I think the next wave of welfare reform,

         11  not unlike the bill that we have before this

         12  Council, which is to create a significant size

         13  transitional jobs program which would help us deal

         14  with the most difficult to employ creating real jobs

         15  for people, having them give up their welfare check

         16  from day one and gain meaningful employment, even

         17  though it is subsidized by the government for a

         18  period of time, I think at the end of which they

         19  would be better able to get unsubsidized work. And

         20  talking about and moving in those directions I think

         21  would be a better use of HRA's overall time, but

         22  that we will leave for another day.

         23                 Thank you for your time, patience and

         24  participation in the hearing, for everyone. This

         25  hearing is adjourned.
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          2                 Thank you to all of the clients and

          3  consumers and advocates for coming and participating

          4  in the hearing.

          5                 The meeting is adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 2:00 p.m.)
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